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Repon of Independent Certified Public Accountants 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of Cit)' Council 

City of Colorndo Springs, Colorado 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Colorado Springs J•,.funicipal Airport, an 
enterprise fund of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado, as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2004 and 2003, as listed in the table of comems. These financial statements arc the 
responsibility of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accouncaocs and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gowmme111 
AudiH11g Sta11dard.r issued by the Comptroller General of rhe United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perfocm the audit to obtain rc.asonablc assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in rhe 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of die 
Airport's intern.'\} control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting rhe amounts and disclosures in 
rhe financial staremencs, assessing the accounting principles used and sigoificanc estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We belie,,e that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in note A 1, the financi.al statements present only the Colorado Springs Municipal 
Airport, an enterprise fund of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado. The financial s ta tements do 
not purport co, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Colorado Springs, 
Colorndo as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the changes in its financial position and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles genernlly accepted in the 
United States of America. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all matenal respects, the 
financial position of Colorado Springs Municipal Airport of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado, 
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles gene.rally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Colorado S!>Mgs, CO 80903 
T 719.667.5000 
F 719.520.0350 
W °"'"'N.grantthornton.com 

Grn Tho~n U.P 
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J\s cliscussed in Note C.1, during 2004 the Airport adopted Statemeot No. 40 of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, D1posif and Investment Rilk Dilcki111re. 

In accordance with Govmtmtnl A11ditin,g S1andarr11, we have also issued o ur report dated May 10, 2005, 
on our considennion of the Airport's internal control over financlltl reporting and on o ur rests of its 
compliance with certain provmons of laws, regulations, conrracrs and giant agreements and otbet 
matters. The purpose of that repott IS to describe the scope of our resting of internal control ovet 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not ro provide an opinion on 
the internal conttal over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 1Dtegral pan of an 
auclit performed in accordance with Go11m1mtnl A11dilin,g Standard.r and should be considered in 
assessing the results o f our auclit. 

Color.ado Springs, Color.ado 
May I 0, 2005 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
(unaudited) 

The following tn2t1agement's discusskln and analysis of the Colondo Springs Airport's (the Airport) 
financial perfonmnce provides an overview of the financial activities of the Airport for the fiscal 
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The information contained in this disamion should be 
considered in coojuoctioo with the financial results, footnotes, and supplemental information in the 
Airport's financial statements. 

The Airport's financial statements aR prepared oo the accnl21 basis in accordance with geoer.illy 
accepted accounting principles promulgllted by the Govemmcntal Accounting Staodards Bo2fd 
(GASB) and other standards-setting bodies. The Airport is structured as an enterprise fund of the 
City of Colorado Springs, with revenues recognized when earned, not when J:CCCived. Expenses are 
recognized when incw:red, not when they are paid. Capital assets are capitali:zed and (except for land 
and construction in progress) are depreciated over their useful Jives. Sec notes to the financial 
statements for a summary of the Airport's significant accounting policies. 

Following this MD&A are the financial statements of the Airport together with the notes to the 
financial statements, which are essential for a full understanding of the data contained in the 
financial statements. The Airport's financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the Airport's finances. 

Airport Activities Highlights 

The activities of the Airport for the last three calendar years were as follows: 

1.!!M ~ ~ 

Enplaned Passengers 1,034,747 1,011,643 1,068,157 
% increase (decrease) 2.28% -529% 0.02% 

Aircraft Operations 174,909 200,536 218,166 
% increase (decrease) -12.78% -8.08% 5.79% 

Landed Weight (m thousands) 1,563,735 1,576,794 1,821,263 
% increase (decrease) -0.83% -13.42% 1.19% 

Freight and Mail (tons) 18,236 18,688 21,804 
% increase (decrease) 1.93% -14.29% -0.84% 

Comparing 2004 activity to 2003, enplaned passengers increased in 2004 due to a general 
improvement in the economic condition of the City and the nation as a whole. A significant factor 
was the return to the Colorado Springs area of a significant number of military personnel deployed 
to Afghanistan and Iraq. There was a significant decrea.~e in aircraft operations primarily due to a 
decrea.~e in the number of military flights, a consequence of reduced military activity and 
deployments during 2004, and the impact of higher fuel prices on general aviation activity. Landed 
weight was down only slightly in 2004 compared to 2003. The pace of airlines replacing their jet 
aircraft with regional jecs slowed during 2004. As a partial offset, higher cargo landed weight 
increa.~ by 8.0% over 2003 due to improved regional economic conditions. Frcigh1 and mail 
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dccrcued sliglidy from 2003 to 2004, due prUmri1y to the continued drop in originating (outbound) 
mail 

Comparing 2003 activity to 2002, enplaned passengen and ai=aft opentions decreased in 2003, 
due: to the national and local economic slowdown, the deployment of approxinwdy 11,000 soldiers 
ba!ed at local miliwy bases to Afghanistan and Iraq, and continued financial wealcneu in the airline 
indusay. Downsizing by American Airlines of its St. Louis hub operation, acqui:cd from Tnm 
World Airlines, .r:csultcd in a reduction of three (3) ftigbts per day. In xldirioo, the Airport 
continued to espericncc the nalional acnd by major caaien of seplacing larger jet ai=aft at small 
bub airpom with regional jets. This ttc0d is responsible for the significant decrease in landed 
weight. Overall freight and mail registered a decline in activity again in 2003 due: to a slower 
economy and security ttSa:ictioos rhat limit the size of mail packages allowed on passenger aiia:aft. 
This =ultcd in the Un.itcd States Posail Service no longer supporting originating (outbound) mail 
vohmu:s at the Airport. 

At rhe end of 2004, six major air carriers and seven regional carriers supported the Airport with non­
stop senicc to twelve major cities. In additi<>n, fuUJ air cargo operators used the Airport's facilities. 

Pin•ndal Higbligbta 
Summary of Revenues, Ex.pemes and Chaop in Fund Net Aaeetll 

·~- ·~-:I004 2003 (Dccrcue) 2002 (Deere-> 
Operating n:venues s 20,669,259 s 20,343,900 s 325,359 s 19,810,704 s 533,196 
Opcncing e.xpenscs IJ !!32 !!H IJ !!12 2l1 21 :ii!!! 12 llill.221 211 ~l 
Excess before depreciation 
and other income, net 7.629,445 7,331,666 297,779 7,770,413 (438,747) 
Ocpttci1rion and amonization 2 2:i:i.2ll:i Ci 126 212 1 ll2ll 1Ci8 I! !!Ci!l 2 !ti C2 2J1 Zl2) 
Operating income (loss) (325,840) 1,205,149 (1.530,989) (1,090,341) 2.295,490 

Net nooopcnting income 3,624,305 (270,933) 3,895,238 419,078 (690,011) 
Capital ganu J 6!l2~ 102~222 2 S!l2 212 I! OOllJJ!l (6 2!l:i.6!lJ) 
Change in net a.sscts 6,900,911 2,028,943 4,871,968 7,329,067 (5,300,124) 

Net UICI! at beginning of year l Ci:i l J2 CiZll 1 Ci.l ll !! ZJ:i 211211 ~J l:i:i Ziii CiCill 2J 22!!6Z 
Net UICI! at eod of year llZ2040~ I J6S J32 6Z8 16 2'10~11 I l6.l llQ 2J5 I ~'1.2B 2~ 

Sigoi6caot items affecting the S1nnmary of Revenues, Expenses and cmoges in Fund Net Assets for 
2004 were as follows: 

+ The inaease in passenger ttaffic and its impact oo public puking and rcntal cat concession 
revenue led to an ovuall increase in the Airport's 2004 opetating JCVCOues of $325,359 over 
2003. In addition, lower airline JCVeOUCS of $265,035 due to lower airline rates and chugcs were 
partially offset by a settlement payment of $204,340 to resolve a contract di:sputc wilh an all:pon 
third-party developer. 

+ Operating apeoses increased $27,580 Over 2003 primarily due tO increased personnel costs and 
higher mcdinil/beoefil costs. Additional apeoses for 1mlitics, offset by lower costs for 
adv=isiog. also contributed to the higher apeodinm: level. 
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+ The net result of the above wu ib2t openaring income before depreciation increased by $297,779 
for 2004. Due ro in.service dare col:l'CC!ions made in 2003, depreciation in 2004 incrcascd from 
$6,126,517 ro $7,955,286. In addirioo, sevcr:al projcas reflcctcd as Construction In ProgTcss for 
2003 WC1"C brought into service during 2004. 

+ Net nonopcming revenues increased from a loss of $270,933 in 2003 ro nonopcrating revenue 
of $3,624,305 in 2004. The change betwC'Cll 2004 and 2003 rclarcs primarily ro the Airport's 
one-time receipt of cusromer fac:iliry charges (CFCs) associarcd with the cbcout of the 1994 
Tmble Airport Rental Car Special Facljrics Bonds. A customer fac:iliry charge of $1.50 per 
rcnw car contract date wu cslllhlishcd ro pay the debt service on this bond issue. When the 
bonds WC1"C rctll:ed on September 1, 2004, there was an accss held by the bond austee of 
$3,576,541. Per the bond documents, these funds were rcrumed ro the Airpott. In addition, an 
ordinance wu approved by the City Council allowing the Airport ro continue to collect a $1.50 
CFC per rcnw car contraet date for the pu:pose of funding rcnw car improvement projects. 
For the period of September 1, 2004 ro December 31, 2004, these collcctions were reflected as 
nonoperating revenues. 

+ Capial grant revenues rcc:cived were $3,602,446 and $1,094,727 in 2004 and 2003, rcspccrivdy. 
The increase in 2004 relates ro the substmtial completion of the Taxiway C extension and the 
associarcd reimbursement from the Federal Aviation Administmion (FAA). 

+ For 2004, net assets increased $6,900,911 as the result of the above activity, resulting in tot2l net 
assets at the end of 2004 totaling $172,040,589. 

S.igni&ant items affecting the Summary of Rtvcoucs, EJ:pcnscs and Changes in Fund Net Assets for 
2003 are as follows: 

+ Dcspirc lower Airport passenger tnflic, the Airport's 2003 operating revenue increased $553,196 
over 2002 due primarily to an inettase in airline revenue relarcd to adjustments ro the airline 
rarcs and charges. The higher lCVCDUC was partially offset by decreases in parking revenue and 
non-preferential garc use charges. 

+ Operating expenses increased $971,943 over 2002 primarily due ro increased personnel costs and 
higher medical/benefit costs. Additional expenses for defencd maintenance projects in 2002, 
due to the impact of the 9 /1 t terrorist attacks, also contributed ro the higher expeoditures. 

+ The net result of the above wu operating income bcfoic dcprcciation dcc:reascd by $438,747 for 
2003. Depreciation and amortization in 2003 dccrcased from $8,860,754 ro $6,126,517 due 
prim•rily ro corrections of asset in-service dates and capitalization adjustments made in 2003. 

+ Nonoperating revcnucs decreased from a non.operating income of $419,078 in 2002 to a non­
opcrating loss of $270,933 in 2003. The change between 2003 and 2002 relates to a decrease in 
investment income in 2003, attributable to the lower interest rate earned on the Airport's 
investment portfolio as well as an adjustment to reflect fair market value as requized under 
GASB31. 

+ Capial grant revenues registered $1,094,727 and $8,000,330 in 2003 and 2002, rcspccti•ely. The 
decrcasc rclau:s ro the substantial completion of the $11.5 million rehabilitation of runvny 
17R/3SL project during 2002 Wtth rim large project tteeiving $8 million of funding in 2002, 
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the Allport tegisccrcd lower capital apcrufuurcs in 2003, and thus a smallu amount of funds 
being reimbursed &om FAA funding. 

+ For 2003, net assets increased $2,028,943 as the rmJ!t of the abovi:: activity, resulting in total net 
assetS at the end of2003 totaling $165,139,678. 

Financial Poaltion Summaiy 

.2'W ~ O/o Change ~ % Cbangc 

Cuaent assets $ 43,958,549 $ 40,316,934 9.03% s 41,731,198 -3.39"/e 
Qnchvfing restti<=d cash) 

Ramctai Iuvcstn:en.ts 5,834,682 5,834,682 0.00"/e 5,834,682 0.00"/e 
Bood issue aiot (net) 746,335 828,955 -9.97% 922.587 -10.15,-. 
Ptopexty and equipment (net) 190,358,031 186,460,166 2.09% 187,035,931 -0.31,.. 

Total/uscts $240,897 ,597 $233,440,737 3.19"/e $235,524,398 -0.88"/e 

Cw:reot I iabjlities s 9,617,935 $ 6,474,232 48.56% s 8,177,513 -20.83% 
Long-t=n debt 58,910,558 61,487,927 -4.19'/e 63,923,953 -3.81% 

(less amcnt poaion) 
Other llOIH:llaeDI liabilities 328,515 338,900 -3.06% 312,197 8.55% 
Nct/usets: 

InvcsbOd in capibl assets 128,352,663 124,940,094 2.73% 121,213,901 3.07°/e 
(net of debt) 

llestti<=d 18,010,591 16,626,213 8.33% 16,244,152 2.35% 
Uo.restticmd 25,677,335 23,573,371 8.93% 25,652,682 -8.11% 

NctAsscts l 72,040,589 165,139,678 4.18% 163,110,735 1.24% 

Total Liabilities aod oct assets $240,897,597 $233,440,737 3.19"/e $235,524,398 -0.88"/e 

The brgcst pottion of the Airport's net assets each ycu represents its invi::stmcnt in capital assets 
less the related indebtedness OU!Stllllding used to acquire those capital assets. The Ailpon uses these 
capital assets to provide services to its passengen and visiton; consequently these assets uc not 
available for future spending. Although the Ailpon's invi::sancnt in its capital assets is reported net 
of rcbtcd debt, it is noted that the resources required to repay this debt must be provided annually 
&om operations, since it is unlikely that the capital assets thcmsclvcs will be liquidated to pay 
liabilities. 

At December 31, 2004, the amount of $18.01 million or 10 . .5% of net assets represented resomces 
that uc subject to rcsttictions oo how they can be used. For 2003, the amount wss $16.6 million or 
10.1%. The restricted net assets uc noc available for new spending because they have already been 
committed as follows: 

2004 2003 
Passenger Facility Charges $ 6,295,465 $ 4,911,086 
Bond and Operating and 

Maintenance Reserves 11,715,126 11,715,127 
Total Restricted $18,010,591 $ 16,626,213 
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The remaining unrestricted oet assets of $25.7 million aod $23.6 millioo for 2004 aod 2003, 
m.pcx:tively, may be used to meet aoy of lhe Airport's oogoing obligatioos. 

Airline Signatory Ratel and Charges for 2004 and 2003 

The Airport aod fourtceo (14) airlines aod cargo carricn oegotiatcd ao agrcemeot effective Jaouary 
1, 2000, for five yean, which establishes bow the airlines will be assessed anoual rates and clwges 
for their use of the Airport. The agreement establishes rates aod clwges through a hybrid 
oommettial oompeosatory methodology with a revenue sharing compooeot. The final rates aod 
charges for tbc signatory airlines were as follows: 

Landing fees (per 1,000 lbs MGLW) 
Tenninalrentalratc (pet sq ft) 
Loading bridge rate (pet bridge) 
Sigiiatory airline cost (pet coplaocd 
passeogcr) 

Year Bnded December 31, 

Wi ~ 
$ 1.97 $ 1.98 
$ 53.31 $ 54.37 
$ 39,695 $ 41,432 

$ 7.49 $ 7.87 

The airlioe derived revcoue per coplaocd passeogcr is calculatcd after the smlement of all rates aod 
charges adjustments based oo acrual revcoues and u;pcodirurcs and ioclusioo of the oct revcoue 
sharing credited to lhe airlines, which was $1,802,190 aod $1,577,950 in 2004 and 2003, respcctively. 

During 2004, the Airport aod the airlines successfully negotiated an extcosion of the cmting Use 
and Lease Agreement, which will be effective from January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009, 
with similar terms aod conditioos. 

Pu1=nga Facility Charges 

In De=nber 1992, the Airport t«tivcd approval from the Fcdenl Aviation Adminismtioo (lhe 
PAA) to collect a $3.00 passenger facility clw:ge (PPq oo each passenger enplaning at the Airport. 
The Airport had collected PFCs including interest earnings tbereoo, totaling $44,216,269 and 
$41,421,796 through the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Additional 
info.mwion .regarding PFC's can be found in Note A(3) of the accompanying notes. 

Cuatomer Facility Cbaqea 

In 1994, the City of Colorado Spring$ issued $6,093,000 ~te principal amount of its Speci21 
Facility Bonds to finance the construaion of service aod Stonge fao1iries for rental car companies 
located oo the Airport. The customer facility clw:ge (CFq w:as originally established to pay the 
debt service and expired on September 1, 2004. Wbco lhe bonds were retired, there was an excess 
with.in the fund of $3,576,541. Per the bond documents, these funds were givco to the Airport 
where $250,000 was set aside as reserved funds per the rental car agreement and the remaining was 
recotdcd as CFC revenue on the financials statements. 

An ordinance (04-32) was approved by the City Council on March 23, 2004, allowing the Aiq>ort to 
continue to collect lhe CFC. The collectioo rate of $1 .SO per rented car conmct date will remain in 
effect for lhe fim year of the ordinaoce. Thereafter the rate cannot exceed $2.50 per rcotal car 
oonmct dare without City Council approVlli. 
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Financial Details 
Revenues Overview: 

The following schedule presents a summary of all revenues for the fiscal ym ended December 31, 
2004 and 2003 with a coinpa.tison of changes iD dollar amounts to the previous years. 

Operating Rewnuea 
Airline 
Tenninal ~uilding 
Paddng 
[ .andsjdc Commercial 
Other 
Total Operating Revenoet 

Olher Income 
lovcstxnentlncorne 
Passenger Facility Clwgcs 
Customer Facility Clw:gcs 
Opcmting Giant 
Capilla! Gunta 
Total Otbet lneome 
TOTAL INCOME 

• Opcating 
Revenue 

66% 

Year End Year End sr-e/ Ye•End 
12/31,/2004 12/31/2003 {DecteMe) 12/31/2002 

s 8,245,364 $ 8,510,399 $ (265,035) $ 7,883,502 
1,233,925 t,205,310 28,615 1,168,745 
5,513,116 S,427,189 85,927 5,699,910 
4,071,732 3,897,772 173,960 3,776,423 
1,605,122 1,303,230 301,892 1,282,124 

20,669,259 20,343,900 325,359 19,810,704 

735,318 664,780 70,538 1,751,259 
2,682,961 2,595,632 87,329 2,952,915 
3,590,110 3,590,110 

171,140 
3,602,446 1,094,727 2,507,719 8,000,330 

10,610,835 4,355,139 6,255.§.96 12,875,644 
$ 31,2~.094 $24,699,039 $6,581,055 s 32,686,348 

Total Revenue 2004 

10 

• Investment 
lncomc 

2o/o 

Di'f'Cs 
9"/o 

D C.PCs 
1t% 

12% 

$ Incre.,.... 
(Deaeaae) 

$ 626,897 
36,565 

(272,721) 
121,349 
21,106 

533,196 

(1,086,479) 
{357,283) 

(171,140) 
{6.905,603) 
8.,520,50?.) 

s (T ,987,309) 



Operating Revenuee: 

Significant items fur 2004 as compucd to 2003 were aa follows: 

+ Amine EeVCDUC$ deacascd in 2004 by approximarely $265,000 &om 2003. Gate use chai:ges 
dcaeased by approlimarely $67,000 due to a reduction in oon-signato.ry airlines gate usage. 
Terminal mm decreased by approxi1D11rcly $83,000 in 2004 due ro a decrease in rental n.teS 

resulting &om lower open.ting c:xperues. Landing fees fm diversions decreased in 2004 by 
approximately $52,000 due to a mducrlon in tnlining and touch and go flights. 

+ Terminal bnilding revenues from non-airline tenants inacased by $28,600 in 2004 due to the full 
yeu impact of' additioolll leased space by the Transportation Security Admlnistn.don and a new 
lease with an aviation services provider. 

+ Due to the ina:ease in passenger a:a.ffic in 2004, public puking revenues inaeased by 
approrimatrly $85,900 in 2004 compared to 2003. 

+ Laodside cOtDJIICl'cial coocesU>os arc primarily composed of renw car priWcge and use fees. In 
2004, this revenue source increased by approximately $174,000 due prirmrily to higher minimwn 
guarantee paymenm &om bldii submitted in 2000. 

+ Other revenues increase by approximately $301,900 due to higher fuel flowage fees raniliing 
&om competitive pricing offca:d by Airport P'cr.ed Based Open.tors and a ooe-dme settlement 
payment to resolve a ground lease dispute with an aiipott third party developer. 

• Tt11ml11al 
Building 

6% 

O AlrflflO 
39% 

Operating Revenue • 2004 

11 

OOtl>er 
8% 

• Paf1(1ng 
21% 

• Landaldlt 
Comm••Clai 

20% 



Sisnificwt items for 2003 as compared to 2002 were as follows: 

+ Airline Revenues increased by approximately $627,000 from 2002. Landing fees increased by 
$650,000 due to an increase in the landing fee rate, offset by a significant dcacase in landed 
weight. Teaninal rents inacascd in 2003 by $691,000 due to an inc:reasc in rental rates related to 

higher operating apcnses and lower net ievcnue available for sharing in 2003. These airline 
n:venue increases were partially offset by a decrease in noo-prefcrcntial gate usage clwgcs due 
to a direct lease of Gate 5A to Uo.i!ed Airlines and fewer ooo-Sigoatoiy airline uses. 

+ Parking revenues decreased by approximately $273,000 due to lower passcoger tn.ffic in 2003. 
Teaninal building revenues increased due to additional n:venue related to the lease of office 
space for the Transportation Security Administration ('I'SA), partially offset by lower coocessinn 
revenues due to decreased passenger traffic. 

+ Landside commercW concessions are primarily composed of rental car privilege and use fees. In 
2003, this n:venue sowu increased by approximately $121,000 due primarily to higher mininnun 
guarantee payments from bids submitted in 2000. 

Other Income 

The sign.i6cant items for 2004 as compared to 2003 arc as follows: 

+ Investment inoomc inacascd by approximately $71,000 from 2003, due primarily to unrealiud 
loss oo invesanents of approximately $(554,000) in 2003 compared to an uorealized loss in 2004 
of approximarrly $(442,000). These adjusanents are in accorcboce with GASB Statement No. 
31. 

+ Passenger facility chugcs for 2004 increased by approximately $87,000 doe to higher passenger 
activity. Passcogcr facility charges are recognized on a cash basis when i:ecc.ived in accon!ance 
with GASB 33. 

+ Customer facility charges are a new sowu of revenue for the Allport during 2004. "3 of 
September 1, 2004, the Allport was authorized by City Council to collect a Customer Facility 
Charge (CFC) for the purpose of fimding new rental car improvements. A oollectioo rate of 
$1.50 per rental car CODtraet date was authorized for the first year and mese fees in me amount 
of $263,569 are rellected as 2004 ooo-opcratiog revenues. This revenue is for the period of 
September 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004. 

In addition, the Airport received a one-time payment in 2004 in the amount of $3,576,541 due 
to the maturity of the 1994 Airport Special Facility Bonds (Rental Car Projects). This bond issue 
was used to finance the construction of service and storage facilities for the rental car 
companies. A customer facility charge (CFC) was established in 1994 to pay the debt scrrice on 
these bonds and higher man anticipated rental car activity resulted in fee collections in excess of 
the debt service requirements. This excess amount was held by the bond austee prior to the 
marurity and these funds were retmned to the Airport upon full repayment as provided under 
the bond documents. Upon reocipt of the fimds, $250,000 was set aside as reserved fimds, as 
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icquited under the rcnw car concession agtecmcnt, and the n=m•ining was tceorded as CFC 
=ue on tbe 2004 income StUcmcnt. 

+ Capial grants =ue inaeased in 2004 by approxilmtdy $2.5 million compared to 2003. This 
increase is a result of increased capiw apendirurcs for projects approved for grant 
reimb~t by the Federal Aviation Adrninistr11tion (fAA). 

The slgniflcant items for 2003 as compared to 2002 arc as follows: 

+ Invesancnt income deacased by approximately $1,086,500 from 2002, due primarily to 
adjustments to UlllC2lized loss on investments of $(188,800) in 2002 compared to unrealized 
losses in 2003 of ($554,400), in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31. In addition, lower 
interest rates resulted in lowtt invesancot income of $1,219,200 in 2003 from $1,940,100 in 
2002. 

+ Passenger faciliry clw:gcs dcacascd by approxitnatdy $357,000 compared ro 2002. Passenger 
fiicility clw:gcs arc m::ogn.iud on a cash basis when rcccivcd in accordance with GASB 33. 

+ Capital grants revmue decreased in 2003 approxitnatdy $6.9 million compared to 2002. This 
decrca!e is the result of lower capial expenditures for projects available for grant rcimbum:ment 
by the FAA. 

Bxpcmc Overview: 

The following schedule p resents a swnmary of all expenses for the fiscal years ended December 31, 
2004 and 2003, along with comparisons in dollan to tbe prior years. 

Yea End YeaEod $1Dcreaac/ YeaEod S Incttaac 
12/31/2004 12/ 31/2003 (Decteaac) 12/ 31/2002 (DecteMC) 

Openting Expen9C9 
S.latjcs and Beoefus s 6,832)47 s 6,612,203 $ 220,144 $ 6,219,745 $ 392,458 
Other Opencing Fipcnsa 6;l!J7,467 6,400iQ31 ~192,564) 5,820,546 579,485 
Toal Openting Expeoees 13,039,814 13,012,234 Tl~ 12,G40,291 971,943 

Oep~doo and gain or loss 
on disposal of capitlll assets 7,952,562 6,124,422 1,828,140 9,054,906 (2,930,484) 
Interest Expense 3,386,807 3,533,440 ~146,633~ 4,262,084 (228,644) 
TOTAL EXPENSES $24,379,183 $ 22,670,096 Sl,709,087 $ 25,357,281 $(2,687,185) 

Operating expenses were approximately $28,000 higher in 2004 compared to 2003. 

+ Additional breakdowns of operating expenses and explanations of variances are provided below 
under Expense by Category. 

+ Depreciation expense was $1.8 million higher in 2004 compared to 2003 due co an adjusanent in 
accumulated depreciation in 2003 co correct asset in-service dates for improvements capitalized 
in prior years. This one-time adjusanenc resulted in 2003 depreciation being lower than the 
cum:ot year depreciation on assets in service. 

+ Interest expense for 2004 was approximately $147,000 lower cban 2003 due to the amortization 
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schedule applying a great.er portion of rhe subs WI cially level debt service payments toward 
principal and less toward intctCst each year. 

The significant issues affecting 2003 expenses as compared to 2002 were as follows: 

+ Openting expenses were approximately $972,000 higher in 2003 compared to 2002. Additional 
b.reakdowns of operating expenses and explanations of variances are provided below under 
Expense by Category. 

+ Depreciation expense was $2.9 million lower than 2002 due to an adjustment in accumulated 
depreciation and current year depreciation expense to correct in-service dates for improvements 
capitalized in prior years. 

+ Interest expense for 2003 was approximately $729 ,000 lower than 2002 due to the late 2002 
refunding of $41.3 million of bonds issued in 1994 to take advantage of significantly lower debt 
mtes. 

Bxpense by Category: 

The following charts show the operating expenses by category for the yeaxs ended December 31, 
2004 and 2003. 

2004 2004 2003 $1=reue/ 2003 
ToW. ~.of Total TOW. (Decreaac) ~.of Total 

Salaries and Benefits s 6,832,347 52.40% $ 6,612,203 $ 220,144 50.82% 
Supplies 560,n4 4.30% 609,113 (48,339) 4.68o/o 
Repain and MAintenance 1,226,170 9.40o/o 1,212,761 13,409 9.32% 
Advcrti.sing 199,690 1.53% 473,537 (273,847) 3.64o/o 
Utilities 1,125,938 8.64o/o 913,829 212,109 7.02"/o 
Conttact Services 591,900 4.54% 579,250 12,650 4.45o/o 
Puking Mamgement 1,343,054 10.30% 1,313,644 29,410 10.10% 
Milorell•neous 1,069,369 8.20% 1,104,793 (35,424) 8.49% 
Capital Expenditures 90,572 .69% 193,104 (102,53~ 1.48% 
TOTAL EXPENSES s 13,039,814 100.00% $ 13,012,234 s 21,580 100.00% 

The signi.6.cam variances between 2004 and 2003 expenses by category are the result of: 

+ Salaries and benefits increased approximately $220,000 in 2004 due to the 4% pay increase for 
civilian employees and the 6% pay increase for sworn officers during 2004, as well as increases in 
medical and benefit costs. 

+ Advertising costs decreased approximately $274,000 in 2004 compared to 2003 due to a decision 
to focus on ditect air service marketing with less use of television, tadio, and print advertising. 

+ Utility costs for 2004 increased approximately $212,000 compared to 2003 due to increased rates 
for electric, nacural gas, and water services. 

+ Capital expenditures decreased approximately $103,000 in 2004 compared to 2003 due to a 
decrease in capital expenditures under the City's capitalization threshold. 
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'The signi6canc variances between 2003 and 2002 expenses by arego:ry were ihe result of 

+ Sabries and benefits lncrea.sed $392,000 in 2003 due to salary progressions and an increase in 
medical/benefit oosts. 

+ Repair and al2inte!Wlce expenses were approximately $219,000 higher in 2003 due to the 
replacement of tetminal c:upet 20d escalator step replacements. 

+ Miscellaneous expenses increased approximately $264,000 in 2003 due primarily to 211 Increase lo 
the administtative prorate charge assessed by the City of Colorado Springs for services provided 
by the City to the Airport. 

Operating Expe11aes by Category 
2004 

• SaLuit".ft: 3.1111 

Ben.fill 
5()% 

Budgetary Highlight11 

• Capit:il 
11(4 

2004 
Budget 

Operatinc Revenues 

0 1'fac 
8% 

2ll04 
Actual 

Airline Revenues $ 8,568,1 i3 s 8,245,364 
Otbtt Operating Revenues 12,260,800 12,423,895 
Tolal Operating Revenues 20,828,913 20,669,259 

Totlll Operating Expenses 14,130,411 13,0391814 
Total Operating Income $ 6,698,502 $ 7,629,445 

"·Over/ 
(Under) 

D llep:litund 
~ram ttncnce 

9% 

2003 2003 
Budget A,ctual 

.J.77 % $ 9,198,471 $8,510,399 
1.33 o/o 12,769,800 11,833,501 
..o.n o/o 21,968,271 20,"43,900 

-7.72 % 14,687,088 13,012,234 
13.90 o/o $ 7,281,183 f 7,331,666 

The signitlcaot variances related to 2004 budget and actual figures arc as follows: 

"• Over/ 
(Under) 

-7.48 % 
-7.33 % 
-7.39 o/o 

-11.40 o/o 
0.69 o/o 

+ Airline revenues were approximarely $323,000 or 3.8% Jess than budgeted. Under the airline 
rates and charges methodology, this reduction is due to lower than 20ticipated operating 
expenses outlined below, which resulted in lower landing fees and t=nloal rents. 



+ Operating expenses were approximately $1.1 million lower than originally budgeted due to salary 
savings from V11Cant positions and significant reductions in contracrual services and advertising. 
The Allport also registered lower than budgeted costs for insurance, p.arking management 
services, and employee training and traVe!. These reductions were panially offset by $100,000 in 
higher than anticipated utility coses due to :ate increases for electrical, natu:al gas, and water 
services. 

The significant variances related to 2003 budget and actual figures were as follows: 

+ Airline revenues were approximately $688,000 or 7.5% less than budgeted. Under the airline 
:ates and chatges methodology, this reduction is due to lower than anticipated operating 
expenses outlined under Expense by Category, which resulted in lower landing fees and terminal 
rentS. In addition, landing fee .revenues are lower due to a decrease in landed weight from lower 
than projected scheduled flights and the replacement o f large planes with smaller regio nal jecs. 

+ Other operating .revenues were $936,000 less than budgeted in 2003. Actual parking .revenues 
were approximately $940,000 less than budgeted due to a projected growth in enplaned 
passengers of 5% in 2003. Actual enplaned passengers in 2003 were 1,011,643, which was a 
53% decrease as compared to 2002. 

+ Operating expenses were approximately $1.2 million lower than originally budgeted due to the 
mid-ycou: reductions made in contractual services, advertising, supply purchases, employee 
discretionary and capital equipment expenses. In addition, the Allport registered lower than 
projected utility and insurance costs in 2003. Reductions at the discret:ion of Allport 
management were made in reaction to passenger levels lower than projected and to maintain 
airline rates and chatges at levels originally established for the first two quarters of 2003. 

Long-Term Debt 

The Ail:pott had $62,846,355 and $65,464,950 in bonds outstanding in five series of bonds; 2002A, 
1996.A, 1996B, 1992B, and 1992C as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The bonds are 
payable solely from net revenues of the Airport system and from cenain funds established under the 
bond ordinance. 

Additional information regarding the refunding and the Attpott's outstanding bonds can be found in 
Note C(3) of the accompanying notes. 

The Allport cw:rently has public bond i:atings from the three major xating agencies. Cw:rently the 
:ates are as follows: 

Fitch Moodv's S & P 
Aimon Revenue Bonds A- I Stable A3 I Stable A- I Stable 

Capital Acquisition and Co nstruction Activities 

During fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Allport expended approximately $11.9 
and $6.1 million in capital activities, respectively. Major co nstructio n projects in 2004 included the 
extension of Taxiway C, the expansion o f the security checkpoint and concession areas in die 
tenninal building, and development o f an aitport business park. Property and equipment 
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acquisitions are capiWized at cost if ovcx $5,000. 

Major capital projects for the years coded December 31 included: 
2!l!M 2003 

Taxiway C Extension $ 4,599,471 $ 2,699,269 
Rehabilitation of Runway 17R/35L (200,547) 1,872,179 
Taxiway H Extension 177,824 
Rental Cat/ Public Parking/ Roadway lmprovementS 712,438 93,000 
Maintenance Storage Facility 268,758 322,566 
V chicle Service Road 172,490 78,930 
Lease Management System 46,113 254,516 
Terminal Expansion Improvements 2,588,828 49,923 
Business Parle Development 1,281,698 168,136 
Relocation of ETD Equipment 525,812 
Aviation Way Expansion 541,253 50,535 
GA Taxilane/Holding Bay 807,061 40,150 
Miscellaneous other Airport improvements 3~S9i i22,2ZZ 

Total $ 11,856,093 $ 6,058,481 

Acquisitions are funded using a variety of financing techniques, including federal grants, passenger 
facility charges, issuance of airport system revenue bonds and the Airport's capital fund. 

Additional information regarding capital assets can. be found in Note C(2). 

Request for Infoanation 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Airport's finances for all those 
interested. Questions conceming any of the information provided in this report or request for 
additional information should be addressed in writing ro: Shelli Morgan, Airport Accounting 
Manager, Colorado Springs Airport, 7770 Drennan Road, Colorado Springs, Colorado, 80916 or by 
email to smorgan@springsgov.com. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31, 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
U nrcstricted cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other City funds 

Total current assets 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Resa:icted assets 

lnvesrmems 

Unamortized bond issuance costs 

Capital assets 
Land 
tlulldings 
Improvements o ther than buildings 
Machinery and eq uipment 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles 
Construction in p rogress 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total apical assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation and amortization) 

Total noncurrcnr assets 

Total assecs 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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$ 

2004 

28,521,094 
12,175,909 

3,242,483 
12 063 

43 22!! 2~2 

5,834,682 

74§,335 

18,423,581 
88,460,646 

114,089,694 
4,104,780 

16,795,306 
4,555,322 

11,875,138 
(.67 946 443) 

190 358,03! 

196 232 048 

zi40 827 sn 

$ 

2003 

28,439,093 
10,791,530 

1,086,311 

~Q.~16,9~4 

5,834,682 

828955 

18,397,886 
87,845,71 5 

114 ,089 ,694 
3,697,236 
1,754,159 
4,555,329 

16,1 18,762 
(59 998 615) 

186 460 166 

193.123.803 

~ 2:U.440 737 



2004 200l 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURIU~NT LlJ\BlLITIES 
Cuuent portion of revenue bonds payable $ 3,094,810 s 3,042,939 
Accounts payable 4,750,266 2,291,279 
Accrued salacics, benefits 526,577 399,632 
Due to other City funds 103,576 
Deferred revenue and other tenant deposits 1 142.706 740,l82 

Total current liabilities 9 617 935 6 474 '32 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds payable 58,910,558 61,487,927 
Accrued sick leave benefits 328.515 338 900 

Total noncurrcnt liabilities 59.239.073 61 826827 

Tomi liabilities 68.857 008 68 301 059 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 128,352,663 124,940,094 
Resu:ictcd net assets 18,010,591 16,626,213 
Urucstcicted net assets 22.~z1 ;u:i 2J 522.2Zl 

Total net assets 172 04Q :i89 165 139 678 

Total liabilities and net assets s 240Jl9J,527 $233 440 737 
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Colonido Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

Opcraring revenues 
Airline revenues 
Te.rminal building concessions 
Patking concession~ 
Landside commercial concessions 
Other charges 

Total operating revenues 

Opcnting e."Penses 
Salaries and benefits 
Other operating expenses 
Dcprecilirion 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income ~oss) 

Nonopetating revenues (expenses) 
lnvest:meni it1come 
Passenger facility charges 
Customer facility charge,s 

Year ended December 31, 

lmcrcsr expense 
Gain/loss on disposal of capital assets 

Tora! nonopeniring revenues (expenses) 

I ncomc before cona:iburioos 

Capital grants 

Change in net assets 

ToL1l net assets - begmnit1g of year 

Total nee assets - end of year 

TI1c accompanying notes are an integral part of these sraternems. 
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2004 

$ 8,245,364 
1,233,925 
5,513,116 
4,071,732 
t 605 122 

20,669 259 

6,832,347 
6,207,467 
7 955 285 

20 995 099 

(325 84Q) 

735,318 
2,682,961 
3,590,110 
(3,386,807) 

2,723 

3,624,305 

3,298,465 

3,602,446 

6,900,911 

165 139 678 

~l12 Q~Q ~~2 

2003 

s 8,510,399 
1,205,310 
5,427,189 
3,897,772 
I 303 230 

20.343.900 

6,612,203 
6,400,031 
6,126517 

19138751 

1 205149 

664,780 
2,595,632 

(3,533,440) 
2095 

(270 933) 

934,216 

LQ94.727 

2,028,943 

163 110735 

~l~~ 132 618 



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colo1:2do Spnngs, Colorado 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Year coded December 31, 

Cash Oows from ope1:2tiog activities 
Reocipts from customers 
Receipts from inrcrfuod services pro•-ided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
P:1ymcnts for inrerfund services used 

Net cash provided by o perating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Capitlll grant 
Cap1tlll cxpendirures 
Passenger facili ty charges 
Customer facili ty charges 
Principal payments on revenue bonds 
!merest paymems on revenue bonds 
Payment from accounts payable incurred for 

fixed asset additions 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
lntercst received o n investments 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds from sales and maturities o f investments 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquh'2.!cnrs 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalen ts - end of year 
inves tments 

Cash and investments 

Reconci!iJicioo o f cash and investments ro the balance sheer 
Unrestricted cash and invesanents 
Restricted c.~sh and investments 

Total cash and investments 

(continued} 
The accompanring notes are an integral part of these sm remems. 
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2004 

$ 20,863,665 
12,530 

(3,582,859) 
(6,715,787) 
(2 449 981) 

8127 568 

1,622,599 
(7,965,264) 
2,682,961 
3,590,110 

(3,119,999) 
(2,709,686) 

(1 502 893.) 

0 402 172) 

1,"176,915 
(39 ,868, 784) 
37 537 828 

(1 154,041) 

(428,645) 
I 980 646 
1,552,001 

44 979 684 
s 46,531 685 

December. 31, 
2004 

$ 28,521,094 
18 010 591 

$46531685 

2003 

$ 21 ,1 00,160 
37,467 

(5,218,869) 
(6,559,142) 
(2.491,234) 

6,868,382 

1,739,n4 
(4,047,859) 
2,595,632 

(2,900,000) 
(2,922,939) 

(I 677 655) 

(7 213 047) 

1,219;170 
(3 7 ,228,279) 
37 322 402 

1.313 293 

968,628 
1 012018 
1,980,646 

37 249 977 
$ 39 230 623 

December 31, 
2003 

s 28,439,093 
16,626 212 

s 45 065 305 



Colorado Springs Municipal Allport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

STATEt\1ENTS OF CASH FLOWS- CONTINUED 
Year ended December 31, 

Reconcilfation of operating income Qoss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Operating income Qoss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income Qoss) 

to net cash pro\~ded by operating activities 
Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in assets 

Recei,rables 
Due from other Gty funds 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries, benefits, and sick leave benefits 
Due to other City funds 
Deferred revenue and other tenant deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash capital and related financiog agd investing activities: 

$ 

:E 

2004 

(325,840) 

7,955,285 

(176,325) 
(19,063) 

71,051 
116,560 
103,576 
402 324 

8121 568 

2003 

$ 1,205,149 

6,126,517 

1,073,687 
17,740 

(1,109,018) 
53,060 

(201,053) 
(297,700) 

$ 6 868 382 

1be ;\ itport bad unrealized losses oo investments of $441,597 and $554,390 for che }'ears ended 
December 3 I, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Airport obtained fixed assets through iocw:cing 
payables in the amounr of $3,890,829 and $1,502,893 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airpo1t 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SlGNlFIC'.ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Fin(l11cial JY:po1ti11g cnli!J 

The City of Colorado Springs owns and operates the Colorado Springs Municipal Airport, wbich 
provides air transpor.tation services for Colorado Springs, El Paso County and surrow1ding 
communities. 'The Airport is located in the southeastern part of tl1e City of Colorado Springs, 
Colorado. 

The City, as lessor, has entered into lease agreements with va.Lious aiclines, rental car companies, 
tenninal concession operators, and general aviation service providers. The agreements cover not 
only the lease of aiJ:port bl1ildiog space and laod to the lessees, but also the lessee's payment of 
fees to the Airport based on the lessee's revenues. In addition, tbe City is a par.ty to a parking 
management contract in which the City recavcs all tt!Venues from its public parking facility and 
pays operating expenses and a management fee to the opera tor. Substantially all Airport revenue 
is generated from these agreements. 

The Colorado Springs Municipal Airport (Airport) is an enterprise fund of the City of Colorado 
Springs, Colorado. These financi.'ll statements present only the Colorado Springs Municipal 
Airpon. T hese financial statements do not purpon to, and do not, presem fairly the financial 
position of the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado, and the changes in its financial position and 
its cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

A Director of Aviarion directs and manages tlte Airport. This Director reports to the Deputy 
City lV!anager who is appointed bj' the City Manager, who, ia turn, is appointed by 1he City 
Council. Major policy decisions are subject to the approval of tlte City Council. 

2. Meas1m1J1cnl Jo=, basis of accounting and ftnaflcial statement prese11tatw11 

AU.port funds ru:e accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic 
resources measurement focus. Revenues ate recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of tlte ciining of related cash flows. 

·n1e 1\ irport applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Boiu:<l pronouncements 
(including those issued afier November 30, 1989) unless those pronouncements conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements, in accounting and reporting for its operations. 

The Airport distinguishes operating revenues and e~'Penses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing se.i:vices and producing and delivering 
goods in connection with the Airport's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of rhe Airport arc charges co customers for sales and services. Operating expenses 
iach1de the cost of sales and sc.n,jces, administrative expenses, and depreciarion on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses aot meeting this definition arc reported as nonoperating revenues and 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA1EMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE A - SUl'vflvlARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTlN G POLICIES . Continued 

2. MeasPremenl for:us, basis of acco11nti11g and fi11anaal fla/tment prew1tation • co111inued 

expenses. ~"hen boch restricted and nnrestricted resources are available for use, it is che 
Airport's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

3. Assets, liabilities and net am/1 

A. Deposits and invesunems 

The Airport's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
repurchase agreements and amowus in the pooled cash and investments account of the City of 
Colorado Springs. 

Investments are stated at fair value determined by quored market prices. 

The AU.port adopted G.ASB No. 40, Deposit and Investment .Rirk Di1cloJ11reJ during the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2004 and will comply with the provisions prospectively. GASB Sratement 
No. 40 was issued in order to modify custodial credit risk disclosures and to establish more 
comprehensive disclosure requiremems addressing other common risks of the deposits and 
investments of state and local governments. Disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 40 
are located in Note C.1. Adoption of GJ\SB Statement No. 40 bad no effect on beginning net 
assets or change in net assets. 

B. Capital asset§ and depreciation 

Capital assets a.re carried at cost. The Airport capitalizes acquired property that is of a tangible 
nature, bas an estimated useful life of three years or more, and has a ' 'alue of at lease $5,000. 

Depreciation of capital assets for the Airporr is provided for using the straight-line method 
based on the estimated seivice lives of the assets, which are as follows: 

Buildings 
lrnprovcments other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
lnf.rastructure 
Vehicles 

40 - 45 years 
25 - 30 yea.rs 
5 - 15 years 
40 - 50 yea.rs 
5 · 15 years 

Interesr is capitalized on fixed asseQ> acquii:ed with tax-exempt debt. The amoum of interest 
capitalized is calcula1ed by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing 
until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period. 

Maintenance, repall.s and renewals, which neither mate.rially add to the nlue of the property nor 
appreciably prolong its life, are charged co expenses as incurred. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colo rado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEJ\.fENTS 
December 31, 2004 aod 2003 

NOTE A - SU!YfMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Conrinued 

3. Amis, liabilities 1111d 11t1 assets - t'OntiJ111ed 

C. Compensated absences 

The Airport's employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. The amount of 
accumulated, unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits at year-end is acct'Ued and shown on the 
balance sheet. 

D . Restricted net assets 

Ia accordance with applicable bond ordinance provisions and federal regulations, certain cash 
and investments are restricted and have been included in the accompanying balance sheets as 
restricted cash and investments and resrricted investments. Additionally, the bond ordinance 
and federal regulations also require restriction of net assets for specific pw:poses, including 
operating expense reserves, debt service reserves and approved capital improvement projects. 
Net assets amounts required to be resrricted are shown in the accompanying balance sheets as 
restricted oet assets. 

E. Passenger facilicy chai;ges 

The Federal A viacioo Administration (FAA) bas approved pre,<i.ously filed applications of the 
Airport for the right to impose passenger facility charges (PFCs) on enplaned passengers at the 
Airport. PFC revenue is required to be used co fund FAA appro\Ted capital projects eligible 
under federal legislation permitting the imposition of PFCs. The appro\Ted Airport projects 
include certain completed and ongoing projects sncb as runway rehabilitation, new taxiways and 
building facility construction, roadway upgrades and drainage improvemems. PFC revenue is 
recorded when cash is received. Unspent PFC revenue is recorded in cbe financial statements as 
restricted cash and restricted ner assets. 

F. Customer facilicy charges 

In 1994, the City of Colorado Springs issued $6,093,000 agg1:egate principal amount of its 
Special Facility Bonds to finance the construccion of service and storage facilicies for rent.~! car 
companies located on the Airport. The customec facility charge (CFC) was originally established 
to pay the debt service and expired oo September 1, 2004. When the bonds were retired, there 
was an exc.ess held by the bond trustee of 113,576,541. Per the bond docurnencs, these funds 
were returned to the Airport where $250,000 was set aside as reserved funds as required under 
the rental car concession agreement and the remaining was recorded as CFC revenue on cbe 
financial statements. 

An o rdinance (04-32) was approved by rhe City Council on March 23, 2004, allowing the 
Airport co continue to collect the CFCs for the purpose of funding rental car improvement 
projects. The collection rate of$1.50 per rental car contract date will remain in effect for the first 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Color«do Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . Continued 

3. Assets, liabilities aJld net assets - co11lin11ed 

F. Customer facility charges - continued 

year of the ordinance. Thereafter the rate cannot exceed $2.50 per rental car contract day 
without City Council approval. 

G. Ugamortjzed bond issue costs 

Unamortized bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bond issue on the effective 
interest method. 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COl\iPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABlLfTY 

1. B11dgelary infar111atio11 

lo accordance with City Charcer, the Airport is required to submit a balanced budget to City 
Council on or before the third Monday of November of each year. T he budget is reviewed and 
modified as appropriate and an appropriation ordinance is prepared to adopt the budget no later 
than December 31 of each year. Annual appropriations lapse at year-end. The budget of the 
Airport is prepared on a modified accrual, non-GAAP, basis of accounciog. 

Because accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis 
differ significantly from those used to present financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP), a 
reconciliation of resultam basis, timing and per:spective for the years ended Decembe.r 31, 2004 
and 2003, is presented below: 

Opet\'ting expenses (US GAAP basis) 
Nonopemting expenses (US GAAP basis) 

Less: Depreciation expense 
Add: Capiral expenditures (accrual basis) 

Expenditures (budgetary basis) 

Appropriations 

NOTE C - DETA lLED NOTES 

1. Deposits a11d i111;es1tm11t; 

2004 

$ 20,995,099 
~.~8~.Q8~ 

24,379,183 
(7 ,955,285) 
11 856 093 

$ 28279 991 

$ 61Q2Q820 

2003 

$ 19,138,751 
~.~~1.~~5 

22,670,096 
(6, 126,517) 
s.sso 752 

~ 22 024 331 

s :1:1812163 

The City of Colorado Springs pools the cash and investments of its funds, including the Airport. 
The City's pooled cash and investments as of December 31, 2004 <Lnd 2003, amounted to 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINAi'lCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C- DETAILED NOTES - Continued 

I. DepoJi/J' and i11uutmenu · continued 

$171,933,530 and $165,470,652, respectively. The Airport's allocated portion of pooled cash 
and invesunems as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, was 1140,697,003 and $39,230,623, 
respectively. The Airport's portion was approximately 24% of tbc toral pooled ca.sh and 
investments of tbe City as of December 31, 2004 and 2003. T he pooled cash and investments 
of the City and tbc Airport as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, are as follows: 

Cash on hand 
Deposits 

Demand, time deposits 

Investments 
Toca! pooled cash and 

investmeots 

Restricted i1westmenrs 

December 31. 2004 December 31 2003 
Cicy t\U.:pott Cicy Ajtport 

$ 20,892 $ 4,945 $ 21,042 $ 4,989 

6 537 997 1.547,056 8 332 730 1 975657 

6,558,889 
165.374.641 

$171 933 5.3.Q 

1,552,001 
39.145.002 

s 40 697 003 

8,353,772 
157.116.880 

liJ 65 470 652 

1,980,646 
37.249.977 

$ 39 23Jl.623 

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Airport's restricted investments are comprised of the 
repurchase agrcemcnt.s that expire on December 31, 2006 of$5,834,682 for both years. 

D~posits 

l11e Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDP1\) requires tbat financial institutions pledge a 
single institution pool of collateral against all the uninsured public deposits it bolds, and the 
markec value of the securities in the pool is required to be i.o excess of one hundred two percent 
of the financial institution's tocal uriinsmed public deposits. 

As of December 31, 2004, the bank balance of the Ciry of Colorado Springs' bank deposits 
exclusive of cash not included in pooled cash and investments was $11,201,574. Of the toral 
bank deposits, $200,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and the remainder of 
$11,001,574 was uninsured but collateralized in accordance with Colorado state law. The 
Airport's share of those amounts as of December .)1, 2004, was $47,340 and $2,604,094, 
respectively. 

As of December 31, 2003, the bank balance of the City of Colorado Springs' bank deposits 
exclusive of cash not U.1cluded in pooled cash and investments was $1 1, 17 4, 731. Of tbe toral 
bank deposits, $180,891 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and the remainder of 
$10,993,84-0 was uninsured but collateralize<l i.o accordance with Colorado state law. The 
Aii;port's share of those amounts as of December 31, 2003, was $42,887 and $2,606,475, 
rcspccti,•ely. 

27 



Colorado Springs Municipal Allport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TE!vlENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES - Continued 

1. Deposits a11d i11vesft11enls - continued 

Investments 

The City of Colorado Springs and cbe Airport, adopted GASB Statement No. 40, Depo;it and 
l11•.Sl111ent RiJk Disd1Jwm during the fiscal year ended Decembe;· 31, 2004 and will comply with 
the provisions prospectively. The City's investments are subject to interest rate, credit risk and 
concentration of credit risk. 1be City has adopted an Javcstmcnt Policy authorizing all 
investments be made in accordance with Colorado revised statutes. As a means of limiting its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest, the City's investment policy limits 
investment maturities to five years. 

Investment t;ype Fair Value 
Money market mucual funds 
Repurchase agreements 
Commercial paper 

s 30,574 

US Treasury securities 
US Insrnunemality securities 
Corporate fLxed-income securities 
Mortgages pooled 
Tor.al fair value 
Portfolio weighted average maturity 
Reconciliation to Tor.al Casb and Investments 

Add: Cash on hand and in banks 

6,087,507 
8,656,662 

41,013,050 
103,384,131 

1,736,673 
4466 044 

165,374,641 

6 558.889 

S J71 933530 

Credit Quality Distribution for Securities as a Percentage of Total Investments 

Money market mutual funds 
Repurchase agreements 
Commercial paper 
US Treasury secu.cicies 
Federal Farm Credit Baoks 
Federal Home Loan Bank System 
Freddie Mac (Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation) 
Fannie May (Federal National Mortgage Association) 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate bonds 
Mortgage bonds 
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S§>f Batiug 
AAAm 

A 
AAA 
AAA 
AA.A 
AA1\ 
AA1I 
AAA 
AA 
A 

AAA 

Weighted Average 
Maturity (years) 

0.00 
0.14 
0.03 
1.29 
2.01 
1.47 
3.35 

1.69 

% of Total 
0.02% 
3.68% 
5.23% 

24.80% 
2.31% 

26.42% 
15.97% 
17.82% 

0.31% 
0.59% 
0.15% 
2.70% 

lilD 00°~1J 



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 a.nd 2003 

NOTE C- DETAILED NOTES- Continued 

1. Dtp•Jil.r and i11vesl111m/J - contin11ed 

lnycsqnenrs - continued 

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the City bad entered imo several repurchase agreements in 
order co cemporarily invest excess ash. Undetlying collateral for these agreements is composed 
o f di.teer obligations of the U.S. Govecnment or its agencies and market value of this collateral 
exceeds l 00% of carrying value. 

As of December 31, 2003 the investments of the City and the Airport, exclusive of the City's 
invesanems that are not pooled, are cacegorized below to give an indication of the level of credit 
risk assumed by rhe City at year-end. Category l includes investments that a.re insured or 
registered or for which the securities are held by the Ciry or its agent Ill tbc City's name­
Caiegory 2 includes unmsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by 
the coumerparty's trust department or agent Ill rhc City's name. Category 3 mcludcs uninsured 
and unregistered investments for which the securities arc held by the counterparty or by its trust 
department or agent, but not in the City's name. 

Categocy 

I 
n 
rn 
Uncategorized 

Total 

Carcying a1noupr 

Cjty t\iq,lort 

$149,964,391 s 35,554,229 

7 152.489 1.695 748 

S I 57 116.880 $ JZ 249 977 

The invescmems are comprised of the following as of December 31, 2003: 

Money markets 
U.S. Tre:asury Securities 
U.S. Agency Securillcs 
Corporate securities 
Repurchase agreements 
O d1er 

$ 423,778 
46,681,103 
90,379,160 

2,458,902 
10,445,226 
6,728,71 l 

$ '!57 116 880 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
De.cember 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES - Continued 

2. Capital am/I 

Capital assets acti,oiry for the year ended December 31, 2004 w as as follows: 

Capiml assetS being 
depreciated: 

Buildings 
Improvements other 

than buildings 
Machinery and 
equipment 

Vehicles 
Iafrastrucrure 

Total capit.-tl assets 
being depreciated 

Less accwnulated 
depreciation for: 

Buildings 
Improvements other 

than builclings 
Machinery and 

equipment 
Vehicles 
lo&astrucrute 

Beginning 
balance 

$ 87,845,715 

114,089,694 

3,697,236 
4,555,329 
1 754159 

211,942 133 

(20, 123,844) 

(34,197,780) 

(1,764,790) 
(3,834,643) 

az 558) 

Increase 

$ 614,931 $ 

417,944 (10,4-00) 

15.041.147 

12 QZ4022 (10 400) 

(2,375,095) 

(4,613,124) 

(330,718) 7,457 
(233,049) 
(4-03 299) 

Ending 
balance 

$ 88,460,646 

114,089 ,694 

4,104,780 
4,555,329 

16.795.306 

22~.QQS 755 

(22,498,939) 

(38,810,904) 

(2,088,051) 
(4,067,692) 

(480,857) 
Total accumulated 

depreciation (59 998 615) 0 955.285) ___ 7u.4,,_,5,,..7 (!\Z.946,443) 

Total capital assets 
being depreci~ted, net 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated : 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assetS, not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets, net 

151 943518 

18,397,886 
16.1J8.Z62 

34,516,648 

s 186 !:160 l 6{l 
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~.11~.z;n _ _ ,,,.(2~9'-'4=3) 160,059,312 

25,695 18,423,581 
11 707108 (15,95Q 732,) 11 875138 

11.732 803 (15,95Q,732) 3Q.298,719 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C- DETAILED NOTES - Continued 

2. Capital assets - co11ti1111ed 

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
balanc!: Increase Decrease !.ialan~~ 

Capital assers being 
depreciated: 

Buildings $ 82,440,311 $ 5,405,404 s $ 87,845,715 
Improvements other 

than buildings 113,826,690 263,004 114,089,694 
Machinery and 
equipment 7,882,619 264,284 (4,449,667) 3,697,236 

Vehicles 4,555,329 4,555,329 
InfrastructuJ:e i z;;~ 1:>2 1 754 159 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 205,903,779 10 488 021 (4.449 667) 21 1 942 133 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for: 

Buildings (17 ,385,536) (2,738,308) (20,123,844) 
Improvements other 

than buildings (31,358,363) (2,839,417) (34,197,780) 
Machinery and 

equipment (5, 124,017) (273,769) 3,632,996 (1,764,790) 
Vehicles (3,834,643) (3,834,643) 
Infrastructure (3Q,J64) (47,~2~ cz1,558) 

Total accumulated 
depreciation (53.898 080) (9 733 531) 3 632 996 (59 998 615) 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 152 005 699 754 490 (816 671) 151 943 518 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated : 

Land 18,660,890 (263,004) 18,397,886 
Construction in progress H\ 31i2.:H2 4,211.102 (5.162.2~~ Jli,118,762 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 35,Q30.232 4,2111Q2 (5.425.286) 34.516,648 

Capital assets, net $181035231 s 5 (i(i(i 122 ~ (6 2~1 251) s 1 86~60166 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airpon 
Colondo Springs, Colondo 

OTES TO FINANCIAL STJ\ TEME..'\JTS 
December 31, 2004 <and 2003 

NOTE C - DETAU.E D NOTES - Continued 

3. Rt11t1111t bonds P'D•abk 

In December 2002, die City of Colorado Springs issued $43,005,000 of Refunding Airpon 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A for a current refunding of S41,650,000 of 1992J\ Airpon 
System Revenue Bonds. The refunding was undcnakcn to reduce coral fururc debt service 
payments. The rcacc1uisition price was abO\'e the net cacrying amount of !he old debt by 
$1,049,331. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amorti2ed over the old debt's 
life. which is equal to the life of the new debt. Tbe Series 2002A Secinl bonds, of wbich 
$21,620,000 marure from 2004 to 2018, and hnvc interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.75%. 
Series 2002A term bonds of $6,255,000 and Sl 5, 130,000 are due from 2016 to 2017 and 2019 to 
2022, respectively, and have imerest rates of 4.75% and 5.00%, respectively. 

In December 1996, the City of Colorado Springs issued $12.450,000 Airpon System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1996A ond $3,485,000 Airpon System Revenue Bonds, Series t996B for the 
purposes of paying a portion of the costs of a1p1t<ll improvements at the Colondo Springs 
Municipal Airporr, funding capitalized lllterest and a reserve fund, and to pay certain costs of 
issuance. 

Series 1996A serial bonds of $5,180,000 mature from 1999 co 2012 and bri\>C interest rates 
r.1J1ging from 4.00% to 5.20%. Series 1996A term bonds of $3,04 5,000 and S3,935,000 are due 
i.t1 2017 ood 2022 wd both h.we an interest raic of 5.25%, respectively. Series 1996B serial 
bonds of Sl,44-0,000 marure from 1999 to 2012 and have inleresl rares ranging &om 4.15% co 
5.35%. Series 1996B tcnn bonds of $1,965,000 are due ID 2022 with an ioccrcst rate of 5.50%. 
The 1996A and 1996B tcnn bonds arc subjecc ro mondocory sinking fund redemprion at varying 
dates at a redempnon prjcc cqu:tl to the principal >mount of such l 996A ond 19966 term bonds 
redeemed plus accrued interest ro the respecrive redemption dates. 

lo October 1992, the Ciry of Colorado Springs, Colorado issued $47,390,000 Airport System 
Re,,eoue Bonds, Series 1992A, $9,000,000 Airport System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992B and 
$6,582,687 Allport System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992C for the purposes of paying a portion of 
the costs of a oew cemunal bwlding and other capital improvements ar the Color<ldo Springs 
Muniapal Airport, funding capitalized inrerest wd a rcscrl'c fund, and ro pay ccnaio costs of 
issuance. lbe I 992A bonds were refunded during 2002 by the 2002A Airpon Refunding 
Rc,·cnuc Bonds outlined above. The Series l 9921l bonds were redeemed during t 994. 

Series 1992( capital nppreciation bonds of $8,591,354 ($3,357,783 originnl principal amount 
plus $5,233,571 of in terest accreted through December 31, 2004) mature from 2001 co 2010 and 
have approximate pelds to marurity of 6.80% to 7 .20%. 

All bonds ore special obligations of the City payable solely from net revenues of the Airpon 
Syslem aud from cerbin funds established under the bond ordinance. 
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NOTE C - DETATLED NOTES - Continued 

3. 1V11t1111e bonds P<!Jabfe- ront;nued 

Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

Matucities of the Airport System Revenue Bonds and related imerest expense are as follows as of December 31, 2004: 

Year ending 2QQ2li J22~~ i22Cin 1 922~ 
December3 ! Principal lnte.re.st Prjncigal Inte~est Principal Inrru;esL Principal Interest 

2005 s 1,000,000 $ 1,980,212 s 390,000 $ 524,532 1) 110,000 $ 153,603 s 1,594,810 $ 424,344 
2006 1,030,000 1,950,213 410,000 506,202 115,000 148,267 1,527,842 349,153 
2007 1,060,000 1,919,312 430,000 486,523 120,000 142,575 1,460,480 275,575 
2008 1,100,000 1,882,213 450,000 465,453 125,000 136,515 1,395,905 204,068 
2009 750,000 1,840,962 470,000 442,952 130,000 130,077 1,334,590 134,294 
2010.2014 11,585,000 8,070,262 2,745,000 1,823,885 770,000 537,460 1,277,727 66,212 
2015-2019 16,800,000 4,533,488 3,555,000 1,023,750 1,000,000 302,500 
2020-2021 7 235 ()()() 600,()()() L(i95 00Q 134 663 480()()() 32 875 

Totals & ~l "60 000 ~ 2211G 61i2 $ 10.145 000 $ 5 407 960 1 2.l!~Q QQ!l I J ~2Q 822 ~ a~21 .,,~ ~I iSl MG 

!merest on tl1e 1992C bonds shown above is added to the original issue amount of the bonds. 

J"Qtal 
Principll l Interest 

$ 3,094,810 $ 3,082,691 
3,082,842 2,953,835 
3,070,480 2,823,985 
3,070,905 2,688,249 
2,684,590 2,548,285 

16,377,727 10,497,819 
21,355,000 5,859,738 
10.llO.Q()() 774 538 

s 6,.ai6 l~~ s 31 222 l ifl 

Paymcms on the J 992C bonds of principal and interest will be made in the amouot of $1,670.000 in each of the years 2001 through 2005 and in tbe 
amount of S 1,675,000 in each of the yeacs 2006 through 2010. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airpon 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C - DETAlLED NOTES- Continued 

4. uase1 

The Allport leases facilities and land to various aii:lines, concessionaires, and others. 
Substantially all of the leases are opcraling leases for land, buildings, and terminal space, most of 
which expired and were reissued during 2004. The leases conmin provisions for caocclhtion by 
either party if certain conditions are met. The following i.s a schedule, by year, of minimum 
future rentals of the operariog leases as of December 31, 2004: 

Year eodi.ng 
December 31 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

2010-2013 

$ 10,799,057 
10,936,728 
10,889,105 
10,749,875 
10,639,310 
2,376,371 

l! 56 }90.446 

Minimum future i·cntals do not include contingent renro ls, which may be received under certain 
leases on the basis of revenue, fuel flow, or number of uses. Conriogent renmls amounted to 
S504,604 and S515,204 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respcctivdy. 

The following is an analysis of the Aitport's investment in property on operating leases and 
property held for lease by major classes as of the dates indicated: 

Land 
Buildings 
fcnproveoieots Other than buildings 
Infrastructure 

Less accumulated depreciation 

December 31, 
2004 

s 18,423,581 
88,460,646 

114 ,089 ,694 
16 795.306 

237,769,227 
IJ)! 790 700) 

s 175 978 527 

December 31, 
2003 

$ 18,397 ,886 
87,845,715 

114,089,694 
1 754159 

222,087,454 
(54.399 182) 

s !67 688 272 

Additionally, the United Smtes Air Force leases property from the City pursuaot to a ninety-nine 
year lease and io rum Peterson Air Force Base furnishes all aircraft rescue and lire fighting 
selvices at the Airport as annual contributions (in-kind scLvices) in lieu of payment of landing 
fees under the lease. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Color.;ido Springs, Colorodo 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE C - DETATLED NOTES - Continued 

5. Cho1ws i11 long-rmn liabilities 

Long-term liabilities activicy for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows: 

Bala11cc 
Balance December 31, 

!anuai;y 1. 2004 Addjrions Reductions 2004 

Revenue bonds 
Deferred amounts: 

$ 65,464,950 $ 501,404 s (3,119,999) s 62,846,355 

For issuance p remiums 8,764 (876) 7,888 
On rcfundmgs (942 !l.48) 2J.2Z3 Wl! !!2~) 
Total bonds payable 64,530,866 501,404 (3,026,902) 62,005.368 

Compensated •bsences-
accrued sick lca\•c benefits 33!! 200 (J0.385) J2!!515 

Long-term liabilities $ 64,869 766 s 501 404 $ (3 037 281) $ 62 333 883 

Long-tetm liabilities activicy for the year ended December 31, 2003 was as follows: 

Revenue bonds 
Deferred amounts: 

For issuance prem1ums 
On refundings 
Total bonds parable 

Compensated absences­
accrued sick leave benefits 

Long-lcrm liabilities 

Balance 
J anuacy l 2003 Additions 

$ 67,784,210 s 580,740 

9,738 
(1.049 331) 
66,744,617 580,740 

312 .197 26 703 

$ 67 056 814 § 607 443 

NOT!:: D - OTHER INFORMATION 

1. R.i1k 111t111agt111ent 

Balance 

Reductions 
December 31, 

2003 

$ (2,900,000) $ 65,464,950 

(974) 8,764 
106 483 (2~2.!l.4!!) 

(2,794,421) 64,530,866 

338,900 

~ C2 Z2~ ~21) s_~~ a~2 Z6~ 

Due 
within 

one year 

$ 3,094,810 

3,094,810 

s 3 094 810 

Due 
within 

ope year 

$ 3,042,939 

3,042,939 

~ ~ 012232 

' l'be Cicy o f Colorndo Springs bas established n cisk mnnagement division to coordinate and 
admirustcr workers' compensaaon, propercy and general liabilicy insurance programs for all ics 
activities and opcrarions. For workers' compensation coverage, the Cicy bas purchased 
commercial insurance to cover losses in excess of $750,000 per occurrence. The Cicy pays losses 
less than chis amount through its Worken Compensation Self-Insurance fund. The Airport is 
included in the Workers' Compensation Sclf-lnsurnnce program. For major propcrcy coverage, 
the Cirr has purchased commercial insurance policies with varying deductibles. AU dcducriblcs 
related to these policies ace paid from the budget of the individual departments so affected. TI1e 
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Colorado Springs Municipal .Airport 
ColoDdo Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTE D - OTHER INFOJlMA TION - Continued 

1. Hilk m::magemwt - <"O!Jti11md 

Airporc is included in the property covet11ge of the City. General liabiliry cov=ge for che 
Airport is putchased from commercial caniCtS for losses up to $100,000,000. No cb.ims were 
incurred in excess of the coverage for 2004 or 2003. 

2. Po.rt-rttirtmtnl health eort 1111d lift i11111rona bemfit1 

In accordance with the City of Colorado Springs' Personnel P t)!icy, the Airport offers a bealth 
cnrc plan, including life insurnnce benefits, co retirees with the Airport's contribution determined 
by City Cow1cil. Employees retiring prior co 1979 receive this bealth care plan benefit without 
cost to the employee. Those retiring during or after 1979 receive a limited Airport contribution 
not to exceed $91.40 per month. 

Benefits were provided as follows: 

Retirees with full covCl'llge 
Retirees with partial coverag~ 

Cost of retirement benefits 

Year ended December 31. 
2004 2003 

2 2 
23 18 

25 20 

s 2~ 2~2 ~ 2l l~2 

Post-retirement health cnrc and life insunu1cc benefits are funded through current revenue 
sources appropriated and accounted for in the City's annual budget. 

3. R<lirtmml pla11s 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Piao 

Plan Description: The City contributes to the Muniopal Division Trust Fund (MDTF), a cost­
sharing multiple-employer defined beoefic pension plan odministered by the Public Employees' 
Retirement Associacion of Colorado (PERA). MDTF provides retirement and disability, annual 
increases, and death benefits for members or their bc11eficiarics. All penuaoent employees of 
City arc members of the MDTF. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Stannes, as 
amended, assigns the authodty co establisb benefit provisions to the State Legislncure. PERA 
issues a publicly "'"'ilable financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary infotmacion for the MDTF. That report may be obtained by \Vriting to ColoDdo 
PERA, 1300 Logan Street, Denver, Colorado 80203, or by calling PERA at (303) 832- 9550 or 
1-800-759-PERA (7372). 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANClALSTATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTED -OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 

3. &tirtment plan!· continued 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - cominyed 

Funding Policy: Plan members and the City arc 1:cquircd to contribute to tbc MDTF at a rare set 
by stature. T he conuibution requircmenrs of the plan members and tbe City are established 
under Title 24, Artie.le 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as amended. 111e contribution rate for members is 
8% and for the City it is 10% of covered salary. Beginning with payroll periods ending on or 
after Jonuary I , 2001 and before June l, 2004, the employer contribution paid to MDTF were 
reduced by an employer march on members' voluntary concributions to a defined contribution 
plan. The match, set by the Board of Trustees of PERA, is 100% of a member's eligible tax­
defcucd retirement progr.un contributions limited by a per payroll whole percentage of PERA­
includoble salary limir (percentage set for Jonuary through lllay 31, 2004 was 1.0%). Any unused 
defined contnbution match money is forwudcd co the l\IDTF. Wich the passage ond signing of 
Senate Bill 04-132 the employer match was suspended on June 1, 2004. Also, a portion of che 
City's contribution {1.10% ofcO\'ered salary January 1, 2004, through June 30, 2004, 1.02% of 
covered salory July 1, 2004, through December 31, 2004) is allocated for tbc Health Care Trust 
Fu11d (sec note D.2.13). The Airport's contributions to !vlDTF for the years ended December. 31, 
2004, 2003 nnd 2002, were $406,466, $378,387 nod $335,108, respectively, equal to the required 
concribucions for each year. 

B. Postemployment Hca]thcare Benefits 

Plan Description: Ibe City contabutes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer postcmployment health= pl•n administered by the PERA. The HCTF 
provides a health cue premium subsidy to P!::RA participating benefit recipients and their 
eligible beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Pw 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority 
to establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the Stare LegislatuJ'e- PERA issues a publicly 
available annual financial report that includes financial sratemencs and required supplementary 
infocmation for the HCTF. That report may be obtained by wtiting to PERA of Colorado, 1300 
Lognn Street, Denver, Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA 
(7372). 

Funding Policy: The City is required to contribute at• rate of 1.10% of covered salary from 
January 1, 2004 tl1rough June 30, 2004 and 1.02% from July 1, 2004 th.rough December 31, 
2004, for all PERA members as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The 
comribucion requirements for che City arc established under Title 24, Article 51, Pan 4 of the 
CRS, as amended. The apportionment of the contribution to the HCfF is established under 
Title 24, Article 51, Section 208 of the CRS, as amended. The Airport's contributions to HCTF 
for the yttrs ending December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $4,309, $6,395, and S?,724 
respecrively, equal to their required contribunons for each year. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TE!'v!ENTS 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 

NOTED- OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 

3. &timmnt plans - ronlin11td 

C. Defined Contribution Plan 

Plan Description: The MDTF members of the Cicy may volumaril)• contribute to the Volunta11• 
lnvestm;,nr Program (401 (k) Piao), an Internal Revenue Code Section 401 (k) de6ned 
conti1bution plan administered by PERA. Piao parriciparion is volunrary, and contributions are 
scpaxatc from others made to PERA. Tide 24, Article 51, Part 14 of the CRS, as amended, 
assigns the authoricy to establish the 401(k) Plan provisions to the State Legislature. 

Funding Policy: The 401 (k) Piao is funded by voluntary member coocciburions of up to a 
maximum limit set by the IRS ($13,000 in 2004). Beginning January 1, 2001, an employer match 
was legislated, which would match 100% of a member's eligible tax-defer.red retirement program 
contributions limited by 1.0% in 2004 (through May 31, 2004) per payroll of the PERA­
indudable salary. With the passage and signing of Senate Bill 04-132 die employer match was 
suspended on June 1, 2004. The contribution requirements for the Cicy are established under 
Title 24, Article 51, Section 1402 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended. TI1e 401(k) 
Plan member concributioos from the Airport for rh c year ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 
2002, were $397,482, $332,709 and $271,686, respectively. TI1e employer contributions to the 
401(k) Plan from the Airport for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, were 
$8,984, $45,678 and $62,697, respectivelr. 

All full-time police officers of the City participate in the State o f Colorado Fire and Police 
Pension Association (FPPA), a cost-shaxing, multiple-emploi•cr defined benefit public employee 
retirement system. 

All full-time police officers of the City are eligible to participate in the Plan. A post retirement 
death bene6t is available for all police office(s where the surviving spouse and/ or children 
receive up to two thirds of the benefit to which the officer was entitled at the time of death. 
This benefit is paid uotil the spouse dies or remar.cies and/or until the children attain die age of 
18. 

FPPA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for !~PA. That. report may be obtained by writing to Fire and 
Police Pension Association, Two DTC, 5290 DTC Parbvay, Suite 100, Englewood, Colorado 
80111-2721 or by calling (303) 770-3772. 

Contribution requiremeors are actuarially determined, in accordance with Colorado statutes, on a 
biannual basis. The following mble illusu'l!tes the Airport contributions for the years ended 
December 31: 

Employees hired before April, 1978 

Employees hired on or after April, 1978 
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2004 

$ 6,126 

$ 84,642 

2003 

~ 5,967 

s 80,921 



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Spciilgs, Colorado 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS 
December 31, 2004 :md 2003 

NOTE D - OTHER LNFORMA TION - Continued 

4. Di.rclosrtres abo11/ fair 11al11e ef jinm1cial i11s/ntmt11ls 

The follov.ring methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instruments for which it is poccicable to CSUl'lllltc that value: 

Resrricted assets - invescmcot$ and cash and invesanenis 

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of most of these 
instruments. 111e fair value of some iovesanents arc estimated based on quoted market prices 
for those or similar invesanems. 

Revenue bonds payable 

The fuir value of the Airport's re .. enue bonds pa)'llble is estimated based on !he quoted =ket 
prices of lhe debt in secondary bond markets. 

lhe estimated fair values of the Airport's financial instruments are as follows as of 
December 31, 2004 and 2003: 

Restricted assets - investments 
Cash and investments 
Revenue bonds payable 

Resrricted assets - invcsunents 
Cash and invesanenrs 
Rn-e.nue bonds payable 

39 

December 31 2004 
Carrying 
amount fair yalue 

s 5,834,682 
40,697,003 
62.005,368 

$ 5,834,682 
40,697,003 
66,925,144 

December 31 2003 
Carrying 
amounr fajr \raJuc 

$ 5,834,682 
39,230,623 
64,530,866 

s 5,834,682 
39,230,623 
70,024,515 



SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION 
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Grant Thornton e 
Accountanb and Builneu. AdviSOR 

SU!e 1200 
90 s. C.S<ade 

Report of Independeoc Certified Public Accoumams 
on Supplementaq• Information 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of City Council 

City of Colorado Springs, Colorado 

Our audits were co nducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole of the Colorado Springs Municipal AU:port as o f and for the years ended 
December 31, 2004 and 2003, which are presented in the preceding section of this report. The 
Schedule of Financial Activity of the Various Bond Ordinance Created Funds and Accounts for the 
Colo rado Springs Municipal A upon Project, Historical Annual Debt Service Coverage, and 
Historical Non-Airline Revenues supplementary information is presented for purposes o f additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial s tatements. Such information has been 
subjecced to the audicing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, is fauly stated in all material respects io relation to the basic financial scacements taken 
as a who le. 

The nonfioancial data shown in Airlines Serving the Airport, Historical Airline Traffic, Airline 
Shares of Enplaned Passengers, Historical Aircraft Landed Weight, Average Daily Departures by 
1\iclines and Recem Trends in Toca! Au Cargo is presented for the purpose of additional analysis 
and is noc a required part of che basic financial statemen ts. This data has been sum.mariied from 
Colorado Springs l\fonicipal Airport records and was no t subjec ted to che audic procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on such 
data. 

Colorado Springs, Color.ado 
May 10, 2005 

Colorado s,.ligs. CO 80903 
T 719.667.5000 
F 719.520.0350 
W •1.•m.i.granttflornton.com 

Grant~"*"' UP 
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Cofoodo 5£-rings ?vfunicip::J Airport 
Coloro o Springs, Colorado 

SCl-IEDULE OF l'IN.~NCIAL ACTIVITY OF TH'E VARIOUS 
ROND OROINANCRCRE.ATED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS FOR 
THE COLORADO SPRINGS MUNIC!PJ\I, A LR PORT PROJECT 

Yeu "''ded Decembtr 31, 2004 

OperarioM/ )'klll<i F'unsJ Bond O &M 
Gru$S r..laiotena.ace Bond lntertst Regerye Reserve 

Rsyenuc Fund Fund ACC(H!Dl Account Account fund 

Beginning balance 
$ January 1, 200<! s 1,000,000 s $ $ S,834,682 $ 3,671,772 

Add: Committnent$ as of 
Oeccmb<r 31, 2003 l~H4S 

AdjU$tcd bal3nce 2s of 
January I, 2004 l QQQOOO ltil645 s 834 682 3671 772 

cruc:ndtlr yc..>-ar 2004 activity 
Opeoting revenutll 20.669.259 
Non-oper:iting revenues 

lnC-Cl'Ctit (.o;l;(nin~ 97,046 ZS.02·1 31 ,1 22 182,0 11 87,557 
Pa11i.et\get fu.dlic\• ch2q,ic..; 
Customer facilir). ch<at'!,'CS 
O ther revenue (expense) S,666 
Opcr:aring to ns fen; in 

FAA Gtaot cevenues 

Sub-coral revenues ? J 771 971 153.645 28024 11 122 6016(fl} l 7S2 122 

Opetatiog cxpcn:;<.~ (12,949.241) 
() perating traoi.1fe.r:1; ou1 
Operating Olpjta.J (215,4il6) 
C2pit:il cxpc:n~-s 
Non-0pc,:lring cxpcnS(.'$ 

(2,169,586) l)(;bf service cxpen .. o;cs (3,660,099) 
Debt service ~.;:;ua11cc expense 

~ub-cotal expcn$CS (13 164.727) 12 169 58<i) (} (1(~092) 

B:i.l:ulCC$ before c.."flcumbranccs, 
cummir1nc.1us !'Ind tf"1nsfe~ 21 77 1 97 1 a 1011 0$Z'i 1214U@ Q 6?89TD 6 016693 3752 '.l.22 

E.ncumbr3.nc.t$ ~t 
Dca:mbcr 31, 2004 143 6111,) 

·rcansfe:rs 
Oper.iti ng/ maintenance (13,054,628) 13,054,698 
Bo1ld debt ti.e1vicc (5,822,685) 2,169,586 3,660,099 
Jnoome ~vailable foe sh::irin~City':; po(tion (1,802,120) 
Punding ad~·encumbnnce:1;/wodci.11g capital (42,503) 
Non·prc:fcccnri:d gate usi: fc..--es (99.756) 
Ncl (l'CVcnu~)/cxpcni:c oo Fountain 

l '<-m1in::i) Site (126,063) 
Rep:1yn1eut oflo;&O$ 10 C;apir:tl Accounr (163,675) 
lntcn::;t to; 

Airlines 346,599 (28,024) (31,122) (182,011) (87,557) 
Capital :iccount 

Sub-toroJ l.t';'l llSfct'$ 120 771 971) JJ 054 698 2 11 1 j62 3628?77 !182011) lf!7 557) 

E nding bahnc.e-
D=nber31, 2004 ~ I !222 QQll ua~s 6§' f J ~Zl Z22 

42 



Rcnc:wol & 
Rcpl:accmenr 

Fu nil 

s 75-0,000 $ 

750 000 

17.885 

161885 

767§85 

(17,885) 

07 882) 

UJO.QOO s 

C.apu-al lmpl'.!!~'flnt111 Eund 
Pr~paid 
Revenue 
;\crouor 

1,458,671 s 

1 458.671 

34,70'.> 

l ,19J,JBQ 

].191380 

0 4 1()<)) 

(:14 7(!<)_) 

I !158 621 s 

C.1-pital 
Ac:cr11101 

24,302,996 

M4.2S2 

24 969,255 

571,263 
7,756 

H!l2*1~ 

29 15Q 720 

(10.764,121) 

Cl016i 12!) 

I 8 38.6 599 

(4 Q2] 202) 

1,802, 190 
42,5-03 
99,756 

126,063 
163,675 

34 709 

2268$96 

l6 63:!1 ?23 
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Jlassengtr Cu$COmet 
F'3cilit)' f'ocilil)' 

Account Acc:nunr '!'oral~ 

$ 3,610,410 s s 40.628.531 

8!>2250 I §SQ J54 

4 470 660 42308685 

Z0,669,259 

116,240 11 ,058 1,176,915 
2,675,204 2,682,960 

3,590,110 3,590,110 
5,666 

J 6!t.;? 4•!6 

7,2~2 !04 H QJ l~a 1~ Ql~ llil 

(12,949,241) 

(%6,593) 
(215,486) 

(11,730,714) 

(5,829,685) 

(966 59}) Q0 7?5 J26) 

(1 22551 1 3 601,1 68 4ll l091S 

21 584 '4 llil.2W 

s 6 311 025 s ~~QJ J ~a s '.)22676§1 



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

AIRLINES SERVING THE AIR.PORT 
December 31, 2004 

(unaudited) 

Major and National 

Allegiant Air 
American Airlines 

Conrinental Airlines 
Delra Air Lines 

Northwest Airlines 
United Airlines 

Passenger Airlines 

Regional and Commulcr 

Air Wisconsin (United Express) 

Comair (Delta Connection) 
ExpressJet Airlines (Continental Express) 
Mesa Air Group (America West Express, 

Mesa Airlines and United Express) 
SkyWest Ai.dines (Delta Connectioo and 

United Express) 
Trans States Airlines (American Connection) 

All-Cargo Air!joes 

Airborne Express 
FedEx 

Key Lime Air 
Sundance Air 

Source: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport management records. 
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I 

l\lajor/ 
National 

Yeu AUliocs 

1994 747,659 

1995 1,407,427 
1996 2,386,738 

1997 I 1,969,690 
1998 1,286,.570 
1999 1,193,993 

2000 1,155,670 

2001 976,459 

2002 846,693 

2003 755,056 

2004 715,187 

Colorndo Springs Municip:il Airport 
Colondo Springs, Colorado 

HlSTORICAL AIRLINE TRAFFIC 
For the ycm ended Dc<:cmbc.c 31, 1994-2004 

(unaudited) 

Enoi2ocd oasscn~n Aitcr.tft Q.,..,..tioos (No. of D 

~gioml/ Petettlt M2jor/ !Ugional/ 

Commuter loc:reo.c National Commuter Cargo 
Aidines Torsl m-.....,1 AidiMs AidiMs Airlines 

43,498 791,157 - 11,032 3,604 o.a. 2 

8,516 1,415,943 19.0't. 16,649 1,908 527 

29,124 2.415,862 70.6% 28,524 1,929 798 

79,500 2,049,190 -15.2"/o 24,670 6,177 783 

34,379 1,320,949 -35.5% 15,160 2,356 834 

49,421 1,243,414 -5.9% 15,828 2,700 1,222 

64,696 1,220,366 -1.9% 14,324 3,171 1,256 

89,395 1,065,854 -127% 13,318 3,362 2,221 

221,464 1,068,157 0.2% 12,361 7,242 2,441 

256,587 1,011 ,643 -5.3°/o 11,059 7,474 2,032 

319,560 1,034,747 2.3% 10,477 9,204 1,926 

. 

Pcr:ccor 
loctcase: 

To1"1 m..-..,...,1 

14,636 -
19,084 30.4% 
31,251 63.8% 

31,630 1.2% 

18,350 -42.0'/o 
19,750 7.6% 

18,751 -5.1% 

18,901 0.8% 

22,044 16.6% 

20,565 -6.7% 
21,607 5.1% 

1 Western Pacific Airlines moved its hub from tlle Airpott to Denver lotcmation.J Airport in June 1997, which at the time held the l•rgcst 

market slare of enplaned passeogcn ., the Airport. 
2 No c:ugo ai.rl.ioc bnding illforrnation av:illablc. 

Sollt<lc: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport m•n:agemeot recocds. 
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E!npbocd passenger.< 
JlC! departure 

l\fajor/ Regional/ 
mriooal commuttr 

Utlines :airlines 

68 12 

85 4 

84 15 

80 13 

85 15 
75 18 
81 20 

73 27 
68 31 
68 34 
68 35 



Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colotado 

AIRLlNE SHARES OF ENPLANED PASSENGERS 
For the year ended December 31, 2002-2004 

(unaudited) 

2002 2003 2004 

Percent l)e.rcent Percent 
Number of total Number of total Number of total 

Major/ national airlines 
United Airlines (1) 283,933 26.6% 317,321 31.4% 332,448 32.1% 
Americw Airlines 275,11)7 25.8% 205,365 20.3% 161,958 15.7% 
Northwest Airlines 66,214 6.2% 78,327 7.7% 86,261 8.3% 
Delta Air Lines 112,858 10.6% 69,157 6.8% 85,216 8.3% 
Allegiant Air (2) 18,152 1.7% 35,825 3.5% 37,440 3.6% 
Continental Airlines 47,611 4.5% 10,295 1.0% 10,581 1.0% 
America West Airlines (3) 4,748 0.4% 38,249 3.8% 
Vanguard Airlines ( 4) 26,635 2.5% 
Cbarte<s 11,335 1.0% 517 0.1% 1~3 0.1% 

846,693 79.3% 755,056 74.6% 715,187 69.1% 
Regional/ commuter airlines 

Skywest (5) 83,622 7.8% 93,554 9.3% 107,941 10.4% 
America West Express 92,953 8.7% 69,221 6.8% 107,428 10.4% 
Continental Express (6) 24,346 2.3% 59,071 5.8% 59,186 5.7% 
Comair (T) 2,406 0.2% 25,030 25% 28,998 2.8% 
Cluutauqua Airlines (8) 1,760 0.2% 5,826 0.6% 
Trans States Airlines (9) 5,538 0.5% 
Mesa Airlines 5,085 0.5% 5,179 0.5% 4,643 0.5% 
Great Plains Airlines (I 0) 13,052 1.2% 2,772 0.3% 

221,464 20.7% 256,587 25.4% 319,560 30.9% 

Total 1,068,157 100.0% 1,011,643 100.0% 1,034,747 100.0% 

1 Data includes Air Wisconsin, Atlantic Coast, Mesa, and Skywest serving as United Express c:urircrs. 
United does not report passenger activity for United Express carriers separately. 

2 Allegiant Airlines started service in February 2002. 
3 America West discontinue service in September 2004 and transferred all activity to America West 

Express operated by Mesa Air Group. 
4 Vanguard started service December 2001. On July 30, 2002, Vanguard filed for bankruptcy protection 

and susequently ceased all operations at the Airport. 
5 Skywest enplaned passenger represents activity serving as a Delta Connection carrier. 
6 Continental Express stuted service in October 1999. Ceased service as of May 2000. Provided service 

May through September 2001. Began service again in April 2002. 
7 Comair started service in October 1998 as Delta Connection and ceased service as of April 2000. 

Comair resumed service in December 2002 as Delta Connection. 
8 Chautauqua Airlines begon service in November 2003 as American Connection and stopped service July 2004. 
9 Trans Sanes A.iclines began service and discontinued service as American Connection in Janu.1ry 2004. 

Service started again August 2004. 
10 Great Plains started service in October 2001. Ceased service as of March 2003. 

Source: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport management records. 
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Colorado Sprin&s Municipal AirpOrt 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

HISTORICAL AIRCRAFT LANDED WEIGHT 
For tbc years end«! Dc<:embcr 31, 2002 • 2004 

( unaudlt<d) 

2002 2003 2004 
1,000-lb Peroent 1,000·lb Percent 1,000-lb Percent 

units of total units of total units of total 
Passe-eger AJrUnts: 

Major and national 
American Air1ines 463,87S 2S.So/o 326,804 20.7% 238,368 IS.2°/. 
United Airlines 2S6,244 14. to/. 188,819 12.0% 144,22S 9.2o/. 
Northwest Airlines 100,966 5.So/o 102,209 6.S% 114,480 7.3% 
SkyWest Airlines (Unit«! Exprc") ( t) 36,784 l .Oo/• 50,S2S 3.2% 114,408 7.3Yo 
Air Wlsoonsin (United Express) 11 l,96S 6.lo/· 163,342 10.4% 108,501 6.9% 
Delta AiJ Lines 171,492 9.4% 91,614 6.2% 104,400 6.7% 
Mesa Air Group (United Express) Q) 4,641 0.3% SS,028 3.5% 
Allegiant (3) 32,392 1.8o/o 43.215 2.7% 44,834 2.9% 
Continental Airlines 61,132 3.7% 12,716 0.8% 13,456 0.9% 
America \\'est Alrlines (4) 7,167 0.4,.o S6,478 3.6% 
Atlantic Coast (United Express) (S) S,593 0.3% 13,959 0.9% 
Vanguard Airlines (6) 46112 2.S% 

1,299,722 71.3% 1,060,322 67.lo/. 937,700 S9.9% 
Rtgional and commultr 

Skywest (Delta Connection) 118,607 6.S% 127,464 8.lo/o 167,179 l0.7"o 
Mesa Air Group (America West Express) 117,641 6.5% 87,467 5.5% 128,413 8.2% 
Continental Express (7) 2S,647 1.4% 63,277 4.0% 68,232 4.4% 

Com11ir (Delta Connection) (8) 4,067 0.2% 4S,474 2.9% 47,366 3.0% 
Mesa Ah1ines 10,026 0.6o/. 9,960 0.6% 10,790 0.7% 
Chautauqua Airlines (American Connection (9) 2,514 0.2% 7,668 O.lo/o 
Trans State$ Airlines (Ameriett.n Connection) (lO) 7,489 O.S% 
Great Plains Airlines (11) 28.920 l.6o/· 6616 0.4% 

304,908 16.8% 342,772 2 1.7% 437,137 28.0% 

Total Passenger Airlines 1.604,630 88.1% I 403 094 8.9.0% 1.374,837 87.9% 

All~cargo airlintl 
F«!Ex 162,863 8.9% 137,572 8.7o/• 151,897 9.7% 
Airborne Express 26,517 J.S% 26,926 l .7% 28,244 1.8% 
Sundance Afr 4,992 0.3% 4,934 0.3% 3,930 0.3°4 
Key Li.me Air l,8SS 0.1% 2,149 0.1% 2,614 0.2°1. 
Superior (12) 3,351 0.2% 1,288 0.1% 
CorpoJate Air (11) 1496 O. l% 

201,074 II.lo/• 172.869 l0.9% 186,685 12.0% 

Charter IS,471 0.8% 831 O. lo/. 2,213 0. 1% 

Total 1,821,175 100.0% 1.576,794 100.0'/o 1,563.735 100.0% 

SkyWest Airlines (United l,lxpress) began service March 2002. 
2 Mesa Air Group (United ExpttSS) started servic.e October 2003. 
3 Allegiant Air began service io February 2002. 
4 America West discontinue service in September 2004 and tranSftrred all activity to Anlerica West Express Operl'Utd by Mesa Air Group. 
5 Atlantic Co&St (United Express Connection) Slarted service Nove1nber 2002 and ceased service May 2003. 
6 Vilng:uard started service December 2001. On July 30, 2002, Vanguard filed for bankruptcy protection and subsequentl.y ceased all operations. 

Continental Express started $C!Vioe in October 1999. Ceased SCJVi~ as of May 2000. Provided service May through SeptembeT 2001. 
Resumed service again in April 2002. 

g Comair stancd service in October 1998 as Oell.4 Connection and ceased servkc a'S of April 2000. Comair resumed service in December 
2002 as Delta Connection. 

si Chautauqua Airlines began service-in No\'embt-r 2-003 as Americal\ Conneccion and stopped service July 2004. 
10 Trans States Airlines began servioe and dlscontinued service as American Connection in January 2004. Service started 

again August 2004. 
11 Great Plaini; Airlines started se.rvtoc in <Xtober 2001 . Ceased service as of March 2003. 
12 Superior ceased cargo service May 2003. 
11 Corp0ro.te Air ceased cargo strviee JuJy 2002. 

Source: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport management records. 
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Colorado Spring> Municipal Allport 

Colorndo Sptings, Colorndo 

AVERAGE DAILY DEPARTURES BY AIRLlNES 

For the ye!U:S ended De<:cmbct 31, 1995·2004 

(unaudited) 

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 
Major / National airlines 

Access Air: 2 
Allegianc Air (!) 
American (2) 6 7 8 6 7 
America West (3) 4 5 4 4 5 
Continental (4) 1 5 5 2 2 
Delea (5) 7 8 8 8 9 
Great Plains Ai.dines (6) 

Mesa 5 4 4 4 4 
Northwest 2 4 3 2 2 
Reno Air 2 3 3 5 3 
Trans World (7) 3 3 3 3 2 
Uniced (8) 10 12 13 13 14 
Vanguard Aidines (9) 

Wescem Pacific 12 30 21 

Total major and national airlines 52 81 n 47 50 

1 Allegiant Air started service February 2002. 

2 locludes d epanuccs of Cb.1utauqua Airlines/Trans Scates Airlines (American Connection). 

3 Includes dcpanurcs of America West Express. 

4 Includes departures of Continental Express. 

5 Includes dep•rtw:cs of Com>ir (Delt• Connection) and SkyWest. 

6 Great PJ>ins st:u:tcd scI\<icc October 2001. Cc•sed service Much 2003 

2000 

10 

5 
2 

9 

4 
2 

2 

13 

47 

2001 

9 

6 

2 

9 

2 
2 

2 

13 

45 

7 '!WA filed for bankruptcy ptote<:tioo in Janu:uy 2001, and substantially all of the assets and cen.iin liabilities 

of TWA were subsequendy acquitcd by American tbtough the bankruptcy proceedings. 1WA was iotcgntcd 

into Amerie>n during 2001 and effectively ceased to be opemtcd as a scpatately btanded aitline in December 2001. 
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8 lncludcs dcpartu<cs of Air Wisconsin, Adantic Coast, Mesa Air Group, and SkyWest s~g as Untied Express cattiecs. 

9 V anguatd scatted sccvicc December 2001. On July 30, 2002, V angu>rd 6Icd bankruptcy protection and subsequencly 

ceased all opctatioos at the Airport. 

Source: City of Colocado Springs, Airpo<t man.1gement recotds. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 

RECENT TRENDS IN TOTAL AIR CARGO 

For the years ended December 31, 1994-2004 

(unaudited) 

Total air ca$o {tons~ Percent 

increase 

Year Air Freight Mail Total (decrease) 

1994 15,569 2,179 17,748 

1995 13,491 2,623 16,114 -9.2% 

1996 18,316 5,389 23,705 47.1% 

1997 17,684 7,306 24,990 5.4% 

1998 18,432 4,996 23,428 -6.3% 

1999 22,832 4,238 27,070 15.5% 

2000 21,817 3,337 25,154 -7.1% 
2001 19,767 2,221 21,988 -12.6% 

2002 20,291 1,513 21,804 -0.8% 

2003 18,161 527 18,688 -14.3% 

2004 17,754 482 18,236 -2.4% 

Source: City of Colorado Springs, Airport management records. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Allport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

HISTORICAL ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
For the years ended December 31, 2000-2004 

(unaudited) 

Year 
Net 

Revenues (a) 

Other 
AV'.i.ilable 

Funds Total 

Debt Service 

Requirements on 
Parity Bonds (b) 

Annual 

Debt Service 
Coverage 

2000 $8,530,052 $1,534,476 $10,064,528 S6,132,798 

2001 9,350,176 1,534,476 10,884,652 6,132,998 

2002 9,122,898 1,458,671 10,581,569 6,053,771 

2003 7,863,631 1,458,671 9,322,302 5,653,560 

2004 8,073,091 1,458,671 9,531,762 5,829,685 

(a) Total operating revenue plus interest on invesunems defined as Gross Revenue less 
operariog expenses excluding depreciation. 

(b) Debt Service expenses per Schedule of Financial Activicy on the Various Bond 
Ordinance Created Funds and Accounts. 

Source: Colorado Springs Municipal Airport management records. 
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Colorado Springs Municipal Airport 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

HISTORJCAL NON-AIRLINE REVENUES 
Por the years ended Dcccmbct 31, 2000-2004 

(Unaudited) 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 
Terminal Building 
Concession 

Food & Beveroge s 274,570 $ 261,176 $ 296,239 $ 285,409 $ 293,139 
Retail 361,580 333,980 367,271 350,534 344,683 
Advertising 167,650 212,649 185,378 178,774 167,367 

Non-Aidlnc Space Rcntlll 176,346 153,215 178,666 251,448 308,223 
Other 180,377 148,244 141,192 139,145 120,513 

1,160,523 1,109,264 1,168,746 1,205,310 1,233,925 
Terminal Arca 
Public Parking 6,131,834 5,600,105 5,699,910 5,427,189 5,513,116 
R•mal Car Pc.,. and Rents 3,797,497 3,312,186 3,541,358 3,671,807 3,846,367 
Ground Tnnsportation Fees 135,165 109,825 106,690 100,090 98,940 
Support Building Rentals 116,222 121,619 128,375 125,875 126,425 

10,180,718 9,143,735 9,476,333 9,324,961 9,584,848 
Aitficld Area 
Fuel Farm Rentals 23,611 23,576 23,576 23,576 25,443 
Remain Over Night 7,270 (S,600) 425 100 
Diversion Landing fees 28,448 43,885 29,847 83,675 31,329 

59,329 61,861 53,848 107,351 56,772 
Fountain Site 
Ground & Building RenWs 76,132 58,582 40,382 44,419 186,011 
Utility Rcimbwsements 20,737 28,482 33979 

76,132 58,582 61,119 72,901 219,990 
Aviation Support 
Fuel Sales 429,768 873,269 436,601 517,231 609,503 
Ground and Building Rentals 327,538 343,029 356,550 390,716 625,761 

757,306 1,216,298 793,151 907,947 1,235,264 
Administrative 

Miscellaneous 20,063 102,217 104,526 45,003 145,328 
Late Fees 58,367 36,696 25,069 13,196 12,825 
TSA Reimbursement 19,758 
CSC Group Suppo!t Reimbursement 128,200 128,455 44,044 

Fingerprinting 12,375 5,635 10,535 
206,630 267,368 186,014 63,834 188,446 

Total Non-Airline Revenues $12,440,638 $11 ,857,108 $11,739,211 $11 ,682,304 $1 2,519,245 

Source: City of Colorado Spcings, Airpon records, except as noted 
2000-2004 Airline Rates and Change; Settlement Accrual, Exhibit F-4. 
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SW 1200 
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Grant Thornton S 

R,port on lntcma! Contm! Oyer financial Reporting 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based oo an Audit of Financial Stucments Petlorme.d 
jn Accordance "~th Gwemmeot Auditing Standards 

The Honoi:ab!c Mayor 
2nd Members of City Council 

City of Colorndo Springs, Colorado 

We have audited chc fmancfal sL1 tements of the Colorado Springs Municipal Airport (the Airport), 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated May 10, 
2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of Ameria as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and the standards •pplicable to financi:tl audits contained in 
Covtm111tnl A11diti11t Standorr/J, issued by the Comptroller Genernl of the United S12rcs. 

Internal Control Over Fjoancial Reporting 

Jn planning and performing ow· audit, we considered the Airport's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statcmems and not to provide an opinion o n the internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our consideration of the internal control over 
financi:tl reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that migbt be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in wbicb the design or operation 
of one or more of the intemal conuol componcnt:S docs not reduce to a relatively low level the risk 
that misstatement:S caused by error or fraud in amounts tbat would be material in relation to the 
financial s tatements being audited may occur and not be dctecrcd within a timely period by 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters 
i1wolving the internal co11u·ol over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be 
material \vcakncsses. 

Compliance and Other Nam:i;s 

As pan of obllliniog r.,asonable assurance about whether the Airpon's financial st11terncms are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of it:S oompliance ®th certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, cona:acts, and grant agreements, noncompliance ~th which could have a direct and 
material effect on the detcrminacion of financial stltcmcnt amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that :ue required to be reported under Cottmmenl A11diting Stal/tlarr/J. 

Cdorado Sor"'" co 80903 
T 719.667.5000 
F 719.520.0350 
W wM1t.g11nmiornton.com 

GrMI ThOrl'Mfl LLP 
52 
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This report is inLendcd solely for che information and use of the Airport's management and che City 
Council and is nor it11endcd to be and should nor be used by anyone other than these specified 
puaes. 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 
May 10, 2005 

Lcf 
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